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The Company’s objectives are to achieve an annual dividend
target and, over the long term, capital growth by investing

primarily in securities of companies operating in the mining
and energy sectors.
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Performance Record

Financial Highlights

As at As at
30 November 30 Novernber Change

2012 2011 %
Assets
Net assets (£'000}* 111,663 118,642 59
Net asset value per ordinary share 118 47p 131 08p 96
- with income reinvested - - -52
Ordinary share price (mid-market) 122 75p 127 75p -39
- with income reinvested - - +08

Year ended Year ended
30 Novemnber 30 November Change

2012 2011 %
Revenue
Net revenue after taxation {£'000} 5,570 5,321 +47
Revenue return per ordinary share 6 10p 5 88p +37
Interm dividends
15t intenm 14375p 1 400p +27
2nd intenm 14375p 1 400p +27
3rd intenm 14375p 1 400p +27
4th interim 15875p 1 550p +24
Total dvidends paid and payable 5 9000p 5 750p +26

The change In net 8s5ets reflects market movements and the 1ssue of 3 750 000 ordinery shares in the year

Annual Report and Financial Statements 30 November 2012




*

Chairman’s Statement

The year under review has again proved to be a chalienging one for
equity Investors Concerns have persisted about the high levels of
government debt in much of the developed world, and how this will
impact upen future ecanomic growth In recent months attention
has shifted away from Europe to the US, and the negotiations
there surrcunding the balance between future spending cuts and
tax increases

Against this background, the Company’s net asset value {*NAV"} per
share returned -5 2% and the share price returned 0 8% Over the
same period, the HSBC Global Miming and MSCI World Energy
indices returned -12 1% and -0 8% respectively Since the launch of
the Company in December 2005 the NAV has returned 64 6% and
the share price 67 2% (all percentages calculated in sterling terms
with income reinvested)

Since the year end, the Company’s NAV has returned 3 5% and the
share price returned O 5%

Revenue return and dividends

The Company’s revenue return per share for the year amounted to
6 i0pence (2011 5 88 pence) As set out In the Company’s
prospectus dated 22 November 2005, it s the Company’s intention
to pay four quarterly dvidends, details of which are set out in

note 8

Qur cbjective this year was to pay dividends which in total
amounted to at least 5 75 pence and | am pleased to report that we
have exceeded this target by paying quarterly dividends amounting
to 5 90 pence per share (2011 5 75 pence)

1t1s the Company’s aim to pay dvidends amounting to at least

5 90 pence per share {or the year ending 30 November 2013

Our ability to match or exceed this target will depend on the
dwidend distnbutions from our underlying pertfolio and should not
be mterpreted as a profit forecast The target level represents a
yield of 4 8% based on the share price as at the clese of business
on 30 November 2012

Your Company has now been operating for seven years

We have seen considerable turbulence and share price volatilty
over ths penod however, in each financial year, the ordinary
dimdends we have been able to pay to our shareholders has been
ahead of the previous year

Tender Offers

The Directors of the Company have the discretion to make
sermi-annual tender coffers at the prevailing NAV less 2%, for up to
20% of the 1ssued share capital In August and February of each year

The Board announced on 19 june 2012 that it had decided not to
proceed with a tender offer in August 2012
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On 6 December 2012 the Board announced that the semi-annual
tender offer in February 2013 would not be implemented as the
Company's ordinary shares had traded at an average premium to
NAV of 1 2% dunng the six months to 30 November 2012 Given
that this is better than a discount of 2% to NAV, the price at which
any tender offer would be made, the Board concluded that it would
not be in the interests of shareholders to implement the tender
offer as at 28 February 2013

A resalution for the renewal of the Cornpany’s semi-annual tender
authorities wiik be put to shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting

Share Capital

The Directors recognise the importance to Investors of ensuring
that the Company's share price 15 as ¢lose to its underlying NAV as
posstble Accordingly, the Directors monitor the share price closely
and wilt continue the i1ssue at a premium or repurchase at a
discount of ordinary shares to balance supply and demand in

the market

During the year the Cornpany i1ssued 3,750,000 ordinary shares
at an average price of 125 22 pence per share for a total
consideration of £4,696,000, before the deduction of issue costs

Gearing

The Company operates a flexible gearing policy which depends on
prevating market conditions The maximum gearing used durimg the
year was 3 3% and at 30 November 2012 geanng was 2 9%

Annual General Meeting

The Company's Annual General Meeting will be held at

10 30a m on Friday, 8 March 201 3 at the offices of BlackRock,
12 Throgmorten Avenue, London EC2N 2DL Details of the
business of the meeting are set qut in the Notice of Meeting on
pages 61 to 64 of this Annual Report The Investment Manager
witl also make a presentation to shareholders on the Company's
pregress and the outlook for the year

Proposed change to the Articles of Association

As aresult of recent changes to tax rules, onshore investment
companies are now permitted to pay out accumulated realised
capital profits in the form of dwidends While the Directors have
no present intention of making use of such powers, they believe
it prudent to provide the Company with the necessary flexibility
to do 50 should st prove appropriate in the future A resolution
seeking to amend the Company’s Articles of Assoctation, as set
out in the Notice of Meeting, will be proposed at the 2013
annual general meeting




The Retail Distribution Review and the Alternative Fund
Managers Directive

The current financial year will see the implementation of two
important regulatory iniiatives, both of which wilt have a significant
impact on the Investment Trust sector From 1 January 2013 the
implementation of the Financial Services Authoniy’s Retail
Distribution Review (“RDR™) means that advisers will have to charge
directly rather than recening commissions from the funds in which
their clients Jnvest Investment trusts should now be on a level
playing fieid with their open ended counterparts such as unit trusts
We hope that, over time, mare investors will see the attraction of
investing in investment trusts which are comparatively low cost,
have the ability to gear to enhance overall returns and which, unlike
open ended funds, are a quoted security which can be readily
traded in the stock market In addition, as part of the FSA's platform
review, which will be implemented 1in 2014, 1t 1s proposed that open
ended funds will be on the same footing as investment trusts as
payments from funds to platforms are also likely to be prohibited
We anticipate that strongly perfarming investment trusts wiil see
increased demand from retatl platforms and online brokers

In the context of the implementation of RDR and the growing
populanty of mvestment trusts on platforms it 1s worth noting that
the Company’s shares are designed for private mnvestors in the UK
including retail investors, professtonally-advised private clients and
institutional investors who seek income and the potential for capital
growth fromn investment in global markets and who understand and
are willing to accept the risks of expasure to equities When
assessing the suitability of the shares private investors should alse
consider consulting an independent financial adviser who
specizlises in advising on the acquisttion of the Company’s shares
and other secunities before acquiring shares Naturally, investors
should also be capable of evaluating the risks and menits of an
investment in the Company and shoulg always have sufficient
resources to bear any loss that may result

The implementation of the Alternative investment Fund Managers
Directive will require all investment trusts to appaint an Alternative
Investment Fund Manager {“AIFM”} or become an AIFM themselves
and also to appoint an independent Depositary The latter 1s Ikely to
fulfil a broader role than that currently performed by the custodian,
and will be obliged to ensure that compantes comply with the
relevant rules on portfolio composition and diversification

We expect the implementation of the AIFMD will be effective

from 22 July 2013

Annual Report and Financial Statements 30 Novernber 2012

Outstanding Achievement Award

| am delghted to report that in December 2012 Richard Davis was
awarded The Mining Journal Qutstanding Achievement Award - Fund
Manager Award This external recognition of the depth of Richard's
expertise in the resources sector 15 in my view well deserved and |
am sure you will wish to join me in congratulating hum on this
prestigious award

Outlook

There have been a number of encouragmg developments in recent
months First, the determimation shown in the summer by the
Governor of the European Central Bank, Mano Draghy, to defend
the integnty of the Euro has been interpreted by market
participants as signficantly reducing the tikelihood of a disorderly
Eurczone break up More recently, signs of healthigr economic
growth in China and the US have also emerged However, significant
structural challenges to the world's financial system remain
unresolved, and the path back to the levels of economic growth we
have enjoyed historically 1s unlikely to be smooth

Nanetheless we anticipate that demand for cornmoditres will
continue to increase significantly over the lang term given the
prospect of continuing growth n the developimg world 1t seems
highly unlikely that urbanisation and industriabisation, the dominant
drivers of demand in recent decades, will reverse or that the
pressure on resources ansing from population growth will recede
Set against the well-known constraints on future supply and an
increasing and encouragmg focus on dmdend distributions from
the companies in which we nvest, this background provides a solid
foundation for our strategy of pursuing long term income growth
from a diversified portfolio of equities exposed to the commodities
sectors

Alan Hodson
Charman
18 January 2013
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Investment Manager’s Report

The Investment Manager reports that for the year to 30 November
2012, the Company’s NAV returned -5 2% and the share price
returned © 8% Over the same period, the HSBC Global Mining and
MSCI World Energy indices returned -12 1% and -0 8% respectively
{All data are in sterling with dividends re-invested )

Commodity Market Overview

The penod under review began well, albeit off a low base and in the
first quarter of 2012, returns were looking promising At this pont,
concerns about the Eurozone’s sovereign debt crisis had been
moderated by the ECB’s Long Term Refinancing Operation, while US
economic data points had surpnsed on the upside - the “nsk-on”
trade was back However, these gains were all given back as
concerns about global econcmic growth and the possibility of
Greece exiting the Euro weighed heawly on sentiment Thus by
mid-year returns were not encouraging - all commodities and therr
related equities had failen A third round of quantitative easing then
provided some positive momentum for commodity markets and
towards the end of the period under review, data out of China
suggested that the economy was showing signs of improvement
Industnal production and export data had strengthened providing
investors with a degree of comfort that the world's largest consumer
of industrial commodities was not going to suffer a hard landing
This supportive macre environment provided the momentum for
commodities to trend higher The performance of commodity
markets is summarised in the following table
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30 November 30 November

Commaodity 2011 2012 % Change

Base Metals (US$ /tonng)
Alurminum 2,103 2,094 04
Copper 7,860 7,979 15
Lead 2,091 2,258 80
Nickel 17,492 17,598 06
Tin 20,875 21,862 47
Zinc 2,073 2,029 -21

Precious Metals (US$/oz)
Gold 1,746 1,718 -14
Silver (USc/02) 3,135 3,428 93
Platinum 1,558 1,612 35
Patladium 620 685 105

Energy
Oil (WT1) {US3/Bbl)' 100 4 B8 s <119
Oil (Brent) (US%/80l)? 1112 1107 04
Natural Gas (US$/MMBTU)? 35 34 29
Uranium (US$/1b)* 523 418 <201

Bulk Commodities (US$/tonne)
Iron ore® 1470 1190 -190
Coking coal® 23572 1610 315
Thermal coal’ 1120 %09 -188
Potash (US$/st)® 5330 5050 53

Equity Indices
HSBC Global Mining Index (USS) 5909 5152 -128
HSBC Global Mining Index (£) 3757 3215 -4 4
MSCI World Energy Index (USS) 2420 237 4 -19
MSCH Warld Energy Index (£) 1539 148 1 -38

1 West Texas tntermediate

2 Bren.

3 Henry Hub

4 Nuaxco Restricted U308

5 CFRChina [Blogmberg)

& Soot HCC (Macquane}

7 FOB Newcastle (Macquatie}

a4 S.andard Muna e Sas<atchew:n

Source Datastream All dzia are on a capital basis only

Base metals, as measured by the MG Base Metal Price Index,
gained & 5% over the year, as shown in the following graph One
impertant development in the copper market has been the declhine
in London Metal Exchange imventories, which have fallen 35 1%

At 30 November 2012 inventories stood at a very low level of
251,000 tonnes representing just 5 days of global demand This
has kept the market tight in the face of weaker demand and copper
prices continue to trade at a signficant premium to the marginal
cost of production Qur preferred base metal 1s copper and at the
financial year-end the Company had 10 2% of gross assets invested
in copper shares Our investmenis Include Freeport McMoran
Copper & Gold, Southern Copper and Antofagasta Some of the
diversified miners, such as Teck Resources, also produce copper
Elsewhere, alurmirium and zmne remain in supply surplus with
inventories at multi-year highs




In the bulk commodity markets, iron ore prices ¢losed the period
down by 19 0% as illustrated 1n the graph below Metallurgical coal
- the other key steel making ingredient - has also been weaker
Both commodities have been impacted by destocking by the
Chinese steel mills, as well as lower steel demand in Europe, India
and the Middle East In August, prices suffered a severe drop to
US$87/tonne (from a peak of around US$200/tonne in early
2011}, but quickly recovered as high cost Chinese production was
curtailed The Company’s diversified miners, such as Rio Tinto and
BHP Billiton have significant iron ore exposure These producers
operate quality iron ore prodguction in Western Australia, much of
which feeds the Chinese steel mils These are low cost, high
volume businesses and margns are protected by a steep cost
curve, where the high cost Chinese producers are usually quick to
shut-in preduction when prices dnift back towards the US$110-
12Q/tonne range Kumba tron Ore, the South African producer, and
Fortescue Metals, based in Western Austraiia, are the Company's
only pure-play ron ore companes On 30 November 2012 the
Company had 2 6% of gross assets invested in these producers

In the precious metals sector, goid prices have been surpnsingly
disappointing given all the concerns about the macro environment
and a policy of monetary easing adopted by many central banks
While these factors have buoyed investment demand, rewellery
demand from India - the world's top consumer - has fallen This s
partly due to the weakness In the Rupee which has made imports
more expensive Gold equihies have been even more disappointing
and have fallen to a significant discount refative to bullion prices
Durnng the period under review, the FTSE Gold Mines Index fell

25 1% compared with a 1 6% decline in the buibon price This
equity index traded at the same level when gold prices were around
US$1,100/0z Consequently, we have been adding to the
portfolie’s geld equity exposure on this weakness and the shares
made up 6 3% of gross assets on 30 November 2012 Our gold
equities include Kinross Gold, Elderado Gold, IAMGOLD ard Barrick
Gold To increase the Company's gold weighting further, put options
were written 1n Yamana Gold and Barrick Gold Freeport 1s glso a
significant producer of the yellow metal at its world class Grasberg
copper-gold mine in indonesia

Elsewhere in the precious metals space, the Platinum Group Metal
(“PGM") prices have performed better South Africa 1s the tiggest
producer of PGMs and supply has been impacted by growing labour
unrest In the country, which included the tragic death of 10 miners
at Lonmin's Marikana mine In Rustenburg 1t1s esttmated that
around 340,000 ounces of platinum production has been lost,
reducing global supply to 7 & milion cunces Gans in platnum
prices might have been higher were 1t not for the weakness in
demand from the auto sector In Europe We have one PGM stock In
the partiolio - Impala Platinum Qur exposure to this stock reduced
during the peried in response to the ongoing social 1ssues in

South Africa
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Investment Manager’s Report continued

Oil prices moved higher early in 2012 as concerns about Iran’s
nuclear intentions generated a supply-disruption premium tn the
market Elsewhere, supply-side risks in Syna, Sudan and Yemen
were also supportive, along with low OPEC spare capacity Pnices
were then negatively impacted by a combination of factors,
including concerns about demand in Eurcpe and Asia and rising
supply from OPEC and North America While demand for o1l has
fallen, trghtness on the supply-side has kept prices buoyant, and
volatile Brent prices moved as high as US$130/Bbl in March
before faling back to US$90/Bbl in June Prices then recovered, in
Iine with the industrnal metals, to close the period at US$111 /86l
In Octaber, Hurricane Sandy hit the eastern seaboard of the US,
causing widespread destruction of property The storm also had an
impact on the oil refining industry, forcing the shut-down of
approximately 8% of capacity

Japan has been a significant source of incremental oll demand over
the last exghteen months After the Fukushirma nuclear disaster in
March 2011, Japan’s entire nuclear industry was effectively shut-in
and even now only two of 1ts 54 reactors are in operation Oil and
natural gas fired power capacity has had to make up much of the
power generaton shortfall The International Energy Agency Is
forecasting that Japan’s oIl demand will have grown by an additional
4 1% 1n 2012 compared to 2011 as a result }apan approved a

new energy bill during the period which formalised the country’s
Intention to phase out nuclear power from the energy mix

Before Fukushima, nuclear power was responsible for 30% of the
country’s energy supply and the government now intends that
renewable energy will eventually assume that same share In the
meantime, however, Japan will have to remam a key importer of

ol and natural gas

The spread between Brent and West Texas Intermediate (“WTI")
has widened again and stood at US$2Z /Bbl at 30 November 2012,
as shown in the following graph The relative weakness in WTI, the
benchmark crude price in the US, reflects the fact that fevels of
storage at Cushing in Oklahoma, the point of delwvery for the
NYMEX contract, hit a 30 year high duning October This inventory
build 1s primarily due to the stuggishness in the US economy and to
the increase in o1l production, in part from unconventional oil
shales Brent ail prices, which are more representative of global
supply-demand dynamics, declined by just 0 4%, compared to an
11 9% fall in WTI during the period
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In the US gas prices fell to US$1 82 /MMBTU dunng the period,
therr lowest level since November 2001 Temperatures over the
winter penod in the US were unusually high, which dampened the
demand for gas heating These conditions extended well nto the
first quarter of 2012 March, for example, was 4 5 degrees warmer
than the previous warmest March on record Prices then ralhed in a
mave driven in part by higher than expected coal to gas switching
by the power utiities, which reduced the storage surplus There has
also been a cut-back in dnlling activity in the US At US$2 5/
MMEBTU only 30% of the 9 1 bllion cubic feet per day of new gas
suppiy bemng drilled will yield a 10% rate of return on capital By the
end of the period under review, gas prices had recovered to

US$3 46/MMBTU, as shown in the following graph, stil} betow the
marginal cost of production




One of the most important developments th commaodity markets,
which will have profound long term implications for global energy
markets, Is the US shale oll and gas boom Reserves are vast and as
a consequence of the favourable geology and well developed
infrastructure, technological developments have already driven
significant growth in US domestic oil and gas production US ol
production has risen by 1 midlion barrels per day in the space of
Just two years Gas production has also nsen and thrs 1s a key
factor in depressing US gas prices In Asia, gas pnices are several
times higher than those in the US, but there 1s no easy way to
arbitrage this difference without huge investment m liquefying gas
and transporting it to market Intts recent World Energy Outlook,
the International Energy Agency estimates that North Amenca could
become the world's largest energy producer by around 2020 and a
net exporter of ol by 2030 The Company has exposure to U3 shale
through investments m Southwestern Energy and Ultra Petroleum
Other companies that have also gained exposure to US shale
include Chevron, Total, Eni, BP and Statoil (all of which are held in
the portfclio) BHP Bdliton also made an acquisiion in 2011

At 30 Novermber 2012, more than half of the portfolio's energy
exposure, amounting to 31 4% of gross assets, was through
investments in integrated oi companies, inclucing Exxen, Chevron,
Total and Eni Our key exploration and production positions include
Peyto E&D and Anadarko, while Schlumberger s the pertfolio’s main
oll services company We have also added KBR to the portfolio
(using a put option writing strategy) The Company’s positioning in
the oll services sector reflects our belief that strong ail prices
combined with high production decline rates from mature oil fields
are encouraging an increase In capital expenditure, which translates
into additional contracts for oll service compames Further
downstream, and therefore less leveraged to movements in ot
prices, we have an investment in Enbndge, a distnbution company

In commadity equity markets, the major corporate news duning the
period under review was the merger between Glencore and Xstrata,
the diversified mining {and trading} companies In November 2012,
investors voted 1n favour of the deal (without the management
incentives} The deal 1s likely to close in early 2013 once all
regulatory approvals are in place While investors have generally
heid a cautious view of mining equities, it 1s interesting to note that
the same has not always been true of debt investors For the major
companies, low cost debt 1s readily available In September,

BHP Billiton priced €1 25 billion due 2020 at 2 25% and

€750 milion due 2027 at 3 25% These rates of interest are less
than the equity dvidend yield of the company

One positive feature of the mining equities has been a greater focus
on capital disciphine and shareholder returns For example, BHP
Biliton has postpened the Outer Harbour project and Olympic Dam
expansion and ¢ancelled the Peak Downs coking coal expansion
Meanwhtle, dividend increases have continued, despite it being an
unremarkable year for commodity prices Amengst the diversified
miners, BHP (+10 9%), Rio Tinto {+43 5%) and Teck Resources
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(+21 4%} all raised ther dvidend payments Teck has already
announced a 12 5% dividend increase for 2013

Bunng October, in the energy sector, Rosneft announced 1ts
intention to buy TNK-BP from BP and AAR (a consortium of Russian
tycoons} n a USE53 bithon deal BP s set to receve US$12 billion
in cash and an 18 5% stake in Rosneft in exchange for its holding in
TNK-BP This transaction seemingly ends what has been a
tumultuous relationship for BP and, as well as receiving a
meaningful cash payment, allows them to retain an interest in the
exploration of the potentially odl rich Arctic region Meanwhile, BG
Group, a European energy company with a focus on natural gas and
liquefied natural gas, announced that it expected no output growth
i 2013 due to project delays and a scaling back of activities in US
shale gas (where pricing has made sorne activities unecenomic)
The market took this announcement negatively and at one point the
stock was down close to 20% on the day We took advantage of the
sell-off to make the Company’s first investment in BG Group

Elsewhere, the Company’s exposure to some of the fertilizer
producers has helped our performance during the period

Following the drought conditions in the US, gran prices rose
strongly and this benefited Agrium, a large producer and distributor
of fertiizer in North America Following the stock’s strong
perfarmance, the investment Manager wrote call options aganst
the position At 30 November 2012, the Company had

1 2% of gross assets ivested in the fertilizer sector

Energy eguities outperformed mining shares during the penod
under review, as shown in the following graph This, in the
Investment Manager's view, partly reflects the better performance
of Brent ol relative to the bulk commaodities, which are significant
revenue contnbutors for some of the large diversified mining
companies such as Vale and Rio Tinte The poor performance of the
gold equitres was also a factor During the period the portfolio had a
higher weighting in the energy sector relative to the mining sector,
as shown in the asset allocation pie chart on page 10 This helped
the Company's performance relative to the composite benchmark




Investment Manager’s Report continued

Portfolic review

At 30 November 2012, the Company held 54 investments within
the energy and mining sectors The Company’s averweight position
in energy reflects the Investment Manager's view that energy shares
are (marginally) better value and higher yielding than mining
equities A full breakdown of the Company's geographic and
commodity allocation can be seen In the following graphs below
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The Group generated £5 6 milhon of net revenue dunng the year
Dividend and coupon payments from investee companies amounted
to £4 7 mullion, or 71 2% of total revenue This net revenue
exceeded the Company’s dividend target of 5 75 pence per share
Consequently, the fourth quarter dividend was raised bringing

the total didend to 5 90 pence per share Group revenue

reserves increased to £3 3 milhen A full analysis of iIncome and
expenses is contained in the notes to the financiat statements on
pages 39 to 55

Outlook

While there are signs that the global economy s stabilising,
uncertainties are likely to persist in the short-term as the market
remains focussed on macro-economic I1ssues such as the Eurozone
debt crisis In this environment, investors have treated the
commodity equities with some caution, especially the mining
shares Consequently, they continue to trade at attractive
valuations. both in absolute terms and relative to their long term
averages The Company's investments are in good health
operationally and balance sheets are stronger than they have been
for many years Conseguentty, the equities are well positioned to
return more cash to shareholders by way of dividend payments

Longer term, we remain optimistic about the prospects for
commodity markets In the mining sector, urbanisation and
industriaksation in China wilt continue to be key drivers of demand
growth for commodities In the energy sector, derand i also
expected to grow, with China, India and the Middle East accounting
for a significant component of the increase One of the key long
term 1ssues facing commodity markets witl be supply We believe
that supply growth, for some commaodities will remain constrained
due to several factors including a lack of exploration success,
permitting and financing challenges, and nsing capital and
operating costs This will maintain upwards pressure of commadity
prices, which will benefit the Company’s investments

Richard Davis
18 January 2013
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Ten Largest Investments
30 November 2012

ExxonMobil - 6 2% {2011 5 0%, www exxonmobil com) 15 the
world's largest publicly traded international oil and gas company
and the largest refiner and marketer of petroleum products

Chevron - 5 7% (2011 3 2%, www chevron com) 1s one of the
world's leading Integrated energy companies engaged in every
aspect of the oil, gas and power generation industrnies Chevron 1s
one of the world’s “supermajor” oll companees, along with BP
Exxon, Shell and Total

BHP Billiton - 5 2% {2011 4 0%, www bhpbilliton com) 15 the
world's fargest diverstfied natural resources company The company
1s & major producer of aluminium, ron ore, coppet, thermal and
metallurgical coal, manganese, uramum, mickel, sitver, titanium
minerals and diamonds The company also has significant interests
In cll, gas and hguefied natural gas

Rio Tinto - 4 6% (2011 4 1%, www riotinto com) Is one of the
world’s leading mining companies The company proguces
aluminium, copper, dilamonds, gold, industnal minerals, iron ore and
energy products

Peyto Expioration & Development - 3 8% (2011 3 8%,

www peyto com) Is an explorer and producer of unconventional
natural gas The company's wells, gas plants and pipelines are
situated n the foothilis of the Rockies in Alberta

Freeport McMoRan Copper & Gold - 3 5% (2011 1 9%,

www fcx com) s the world’s largest publicly traded copper
company The company Is also the world’s largest producer of
molybdenum and a significant gold producer The company’s key
asset 1s the Grasberg mine in Indonesia, which is the world’s largest
copper and gold mine in terms of recoverable reserves
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Total - 3 5% (2011 3 8%, www total com) based in France, Total
15 one of the world's largest international oil and gas companies
with operations covering the entire energy chain, from ol
exploration and production to trading, shipping and refining and
marketing of petroleum products

Southern Copper - 3 1% (2011 1 1%, www southernperul
com) with operations in Mexico and Peru, Southern Copperis a
major producer of copper, molybdenum, silver and zinc Around
80% of Southern Copper 1s owned by Mexican mining conglomerate
Grupo Mexico

Eni - 3 1% {2011 2 1%, www eni com) based In Italy, Eniis a
majcr integrated energy company with activities in exploration and
production, refiming and marketing as well as power generation Eni
s also the leading player in the European gas market In the ol
services sector, Eni owns a major stake in Saipem, a leading
turnkey contractor in the oIl and gas industry

Anadarko Petroleum - 3 0% (2011 3 0%, www anadarko com)
1s one of the largest independent ol and gas exploration and
production companies in the world The company is a leading
deepwater producer in the Gulf of Mexico and has production in
Alaska, Algeria and Ghana Anadarko owns key positions in US
onshore shales and has exploration activittes in West Africa,
Mozambique, Kenya, South Africa, New Zealand and China

All percentages reflect the value of the holding as a percentage of
totat investments For thrs purpose where mare than one class of
securities Is held these have been aggregated




Investments
as at 30 November 2012

Main Market
geographic value % of
exposure £ 000 nvestrnents
Integrated Qul
ExxenMaobil Global 7,143 62
Chevron Global 6,590 57
Total Global 3,997 35
Ent Europe 3,541 31
8P Global 3,345 29
Occidental Petroleum USA 2,815 24
Royal Dutch Shell Global 2,693 23
Statail Eurape 2,668 23
ConocoPhillips USA 1,953 17
Hess USA 1,145 10
BG Global 428 01
Hess calt option 19/01/13 USA {44} -
36,274 315
Diversified Mining
BHP Billiton Global 5,945 52
Rio Tinto Global 4,669 40
Teck Resources Canada 2,941 25
vale Latin Amenca 2,832 25
Xstrata Global 1,365 12
Rio Tinte Finance 8 95% 01/05/14* Glebal 695 06
Vedanta Resources Asia 493 04
Glencore Glokal 225 02
Teck Resources put option 18/01 /13 Canada (40) -
19,125 16 6
Energy Exploration & Production
Peyta Exploration & Development Canada 4,431 38
Anadarko Petroleum USA 3495 30
Verrnilion Energy Canada 2,210 16
Crescent Point Energy Trust Units Canada 2,207 i¢
Noble Energy USA 1,280 11
Range Resources USA 1,198 [
Southwestern Energy USA 1,191 10
Uitra Petroieum USA 624 06
Peyto Expleration & Development call option 19/01/13 Canada (49) -
Deven Energy put option 19/01/13 USA {59) {o1)
16,528 143
Copper
Freepert McMoRan Cogpper & Gold Asia 4013 35
Southern Copper Latin America 3,643 31
Antofagasta Latin Amenca 2 844 25
South Peru Copper Latin Amenca &76 06
Turquoise Kill Asia 596 05
Southern Copper call option 12/01/13 Labn America (z8) -
11,749 102

Annual Report and Financtal Statements 30 November 2012

13




Investments continued
as at 30 November 2012

Main Market
geographic value % of
expasure £°000 investments
Gold
Kinross Canada 2,802 25
Eldorado Gold Asta 2,073 18
IAMGOLD Afnca 1,39¢ 12
Barnck Gold Canada 1,077 190
Yamana Gold put option 19/01/13 Latin Amenica (6%) {01)
Barrick Gold put option 19/01/13 Canada (82) {em)}
7,200 63
01l Services
Schlumberger Usa 2,793 24
KBR USA 1,301 11
Baker Hughes USA 1.212 11
5,306 46
Oil Sands
Suncor Energy Canada 2,136 19
Canadian Oil Sands Canada 1,266 11
Cenovus Energy Canada 1,165 10
Suncor Energy call option 19/01/13 Canada (26) -
4,541 40
Iron Ore
Kumba iron Ore Afnca 2,178 19
Fortescue Metals Australia 861 07
3,039 26
Aluminium
Alcoa USA 1,515 13
Alurmina Australia 888 08
2,403 21
Distribution
Enbrdge Income Fund Trust Canada 2,185 19
2,185 19
Coal
China Shenhua Energy China 1,819 ié
1,819 16
Fertilizers
Potash Corporation of Saskatchewan Canada 1,021 09
Mosaic Usa 337 03
1,358 12
Tin
Minsur Latin America 1,261 11
1,261 11
Nickei
Vale Indonesia Asia 810 07
810 Q7
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Mamn Market

geographic value % of
exposure £'000 investments

Platinum
Impala Platinum Africa BO9 Q7
809 07

Zine

Nyrstar Europe AR 06
FAR 06
Portfolio 115,118 1000

Fixed Interest security

All Investments are (n ordinary shares unless otherwise stated

The total number of holdings as at 30 November 2012 was 54 {30 November 2011 57)

The total number of open options as at 30 November 2012 was 8 (30 November 2011 3)

The negative valuations of £397,600 in respect of options held represent the notional cost of repurchasing the contracts at market prices as

at 30 November 2012
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Directors

Alan Hodson* (appointed 4 November 2005)

{Chawrman)

joined SG Warburg (subsequently UBS} in 1984, nising to Global
Head of Equities, a member of the Executive Committee of UBS
Investment Bank and of the UBS AG Group Managing Board untit
his retirement in June 2005 He i1s Chairman of Trodos New
Honzons Limited and of the Board of Special Trustees of Great
Ormond Street Hospital Chitdren’s Chanty and a non-executive
director of JPMargan Elect Plc

Humphrey van der Klugt* (appointed 4 November 2005)
was previously a director of Schroder Investment Management
Limuted In a 22 year career until is retirement in 2004, he was a
member of the Group Investment and Asset Allocation Commuttees
Prior to Joining Schroders, Mr van der Klugt qualified as a chartered
accountant with KPMG He 15 & non-executive director of JPMorgan
Claverhouse tnvestment Trust Plc, and Murray Income Trust plc He
15 also Chairman of Fidelty European Values PLC Mr van der Klugt
15 Chairman of the Company's Audit & Management Engagement
Committee

N

Member of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee

Michael Merton* (appointed 13 July 2010)

was previously Head of Global Business Services at Rio Tinto and a
member of its Executive Committee Mr Merton has considerable
expernence th the commodities sector He 1s a non-executive
director of Cape plc, a director and trustee of The HALO Trust and
the Rio Tinto Pension Fund, and Chairman of the J Sainsbury
Pension Scheme and its investment committee

Jonathan Ruck Keene (appointed 13 March 2009)

18 @ managing director of BlackRock Investment Management (UK}
Limited with over 30 years’ expernence in the financial sector He
Joined the BlackRock group in 1986 through one of its predecessor
companies, Mercury Asset Management, where he was a portfolio
manager until 1997 Following senior management rofes in
communications and marketing, he was appointed as head of
Investment Trusts in 2004 and became Chairman of BlackRock’s
Specialist Client Group in 2012 He s also a director of The Great
Turk Fund and BlackRock Hedge Selector Ltd

Adl of the Directors are non-executive ana with the exception of Mr Ruck Keene are ndependent of the Investment Manager
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present the annual report and financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiary (together the “Group™) for the year
ended 30 November 2012

Business Review

Prencipal activity

The Gompany carries on business as an investment trust Its
principal activity 1s pertfolic investment

The Company’s wholly owned subsidiary 1s BlackRock Commodities
Securnties Income Company Limited its principal activities are
option writing and investment dealing

Status of the Company

In the opinien of the Directors, the Company has conducted its
affairs during the year under review, and subsequently, so as to
qualfy as an investment trust for the purposes of Chapter 4 of Part
24 of the Corparation Tax Act 2010 It1s the Company's intention to
seek approval under Chapter 4 of Part 24 of the Corperation Tax Act
2010 mn respect of the year ended 30 Novernber 2012 The
Company has been treated as approved as an investment trust by
HM Revenue & Customs for the year ended 30 November 2011

The Company has also received approval from HMRC on the basis
of the application made under Regulation 5 of the Investment Trust
(Approved Company} (Tax} Regulations 2011 for investment trust
status for accounting penods starting on or after 1 December

2012 This s subject to the Company continuing to meet the
eligibility conditions in section 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act
2010 and the ongoing requirements for approved companies in
chapter 3 of Part 2 Investment Trust (Approved Company) (Tax}
Regulations 2011

The Company (s registered as an investment company as defined in
section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 and operates as such

The Company is not a close company within the meaning of the
provisions of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and has no employees

The Company's shares are eligible for tnclusion in the stocks and
shares component of an Indivdual Savings Account

Objective and Investment policy

The objectives of the Company are to achieve an annual dividend
target and, over the long term, capital growth by investing primarily
In secunities of companies operating In the mining and energy
sectors
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The Company seeks to achieve these objectives through a focused
portfolio, consisting of approximately thirty to one hundred and fifty
secunties

There are no restricttons on investment i terms of geography or
sub-sector and, in addition to equities, other types of securities,
such as convertible bonds and debt 1ssued primarily by mining or
energy companies, may be acquired Although most securities will
be quoted, listed or traded on an investment exchange, up to 10%
of the gross assets of the Company and tts substdiary {“the
Group”), at the time of investment, may be invested 1n ungquoted
secunties

Investment in securities may be either direct or through other
funds, including other funds managed by 8lackRock Investment
Management (UK) Limited (“BlackRock”) or its associates, with up
to 15% of the portfolio being nvested in other listed mvestment
companies, including listed investment trusts

Up to 10% of the gross assets of the Group, at the time of
nvestment, may be invested In physical assets, such as gold

No more than 5% of the gross assets of the Group will be invested
in any gne ¢company as at the date any such investment 1s made
and the portfolio will not own more than 15% of the 1ssued shares of
any one company, other than the Company’s subsidiary

The Company may deat in derivatives, including options and futures,
up to a maxtmum of 30% of the Group’s assets for the purposes of
efficient portfolio management and to enhance portfolic returng In
additon, the Company Is alsc permitted to enter into stock lending
arrangements up to a maximum of 33%:% of the total asset value of
the pertfolio

The Company may from time to tme, use borrowings to gear its
investment policy or i order to fund the market purchase of its own
ordinary shares This gearnng typically is in the form of an overdraft
or short term facility, which ¢an be repaid at any time Under the
Company s Articles of Assoctation, the Board 15 obliged to restrict
the borrowings of the Company to an aggregate amount equel t¢
40% of the value of the gross assets of the Group However,
borrowings are not anticipated to exceed 20% of the Company’s
gross assets at the time of drawdown of the relevant borrowings
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The Company’s accounts are maintained In sterling Although many
Investments are denominated and quoted in currencies ¢ther than
sterling, the Company does not intend to employ a hedging policy
against fluctuations in exchange rates, but may do so n the future if
cireumstances warrant implementing such a policy

No material change will be made to the investment policy without
the approval of shareholders by ordmary resolution

Portfotio analysis
A detailed analysis of the portfoho has been provided on
pages 13to 15

Performance

I the year to 30 November 2012, the Company’s NAV per share
returned -5 2% and the share price returned O 8% (both percentages
calculated in sterling terms with inceme reinvested)

The Investment Manager’s report on pages 6 to 11 includes a
review of the main developments during the year, together with
information on investment activity within the Company’s portfalio

Results and dividends

The results for the Group are set out tn the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income on page 35 The total loss for the year,
after taxation, was £6,261,000 (2011 toss of £2,100,000} of which
the revenue return amounted to £5,570,000 (2011 £5,321,000),
and the capital loss £11,831,000 (2011 loss of £7,421,000}

The Company pays dividends quarterly and for the year ended

30 November 2012 the Company’s target was to pay dwvidends
amounting to at least 5 75 pence in total (2011 target of

5 60 pence) The first three guarters’ dividends of 1 4375 pence
per share were paid on 18 Apnil 2012, 27 July 2012 and 25 October
2012 A fourth quarterly dividend of 1 5875 pence per share will
be paid on 24 January 2013 to sharehclders on the register of
members at the close of business on 23 December 2012

This makes a total of 5 90 pence per share which exceeds the
target for the year of 5 75 pence per share It 1s the Company’s
aim to pay dividends amounting to at least 5 90 pence per share
for the year ending 30 November 2013 This represents a yield of
4 8% based on the share price as at the close of business on

30 November 2012
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Key performance indicators

At each Board meeting, the Directors consider a number of
performance measures to assess the Company’s success In
achieving its objectives The key performance mdicators (“KPis”)
used to measure the progress and performance of the Company
over ime and which are comparable to those reported by other
Investment trusts are set out below

Year ended Year ended

30 November 30 Novermnber

2012 2011

Net asset value movement! 5 2% -2 0%
Share pnce movement? +0 8% -7 1%
Premium/{discount) to NAY 36% (2 5%)
Revenue return per share 61p 59
Ongoing charges?® 13% 1 3%
Ongoing charges plus taxaticn 17% 1 6%

1 Cakculaed in accordance wib Associanon of Investment Companies ["AIC™} guxdelines.

? Calcula.ed on a mid fo mid basis with income renvested

3 Calculated as 4 perce-tage of average shareholders funds and using expenses excluding
finance costs and taxation

The Board moniters the above KPis at each meeting Additionally,
it regularly reviews a number of indices and ratios in order to
understand the impact on the Company's relative performance
of the vanicus components such as asset allocation and

stock selection The Board also assesses the Company's
performance against its peer group of investment trusts with
sunilar investment objectives

The Directors recognise that it 15 in the long term interests of
shareholders that shares do not trade at a significant discount or
premium to their prevailing NAV The Board continues to believe this
may be achieved through the use of share 1ssues and the sale of
shares from treasury, regular tender offers and the use of share buy
back powers in the year to 30 November 2012, the Company's
shares traded in the range of a discount of 4 3% and a premium of
5 &% with the average being a premsum of 1 0%

To enable the Board to take action to deal with any overhang or
shortage of stock on the market, it seeks approval from
shareholders each year to buy back and 1ssue shares The Board 1s
mindful of the level of any discount to NAV and will act when 1t feels
that 1t 15 in the interests of shareholders to do so




Principal risks

The key risks faced by the Company are set out below The Board
regularly reviews and agrees policies for managing each nsk, as
summansed below

» Performance nsk - The Board 1s respansible for dectding the
investment strategy to fulfil the Company’s objectives and
monitoring the performance of the Investment Manager An
nappropriate strategy may lead to poor performance To
manage this nsk the Investment Manager provides an
explanation of significant stock selection decisions and the
ratignale for the composition of the investment pertfolio The
Board monitors and maintains an adequate spread of
investments In order to minimise the risks associated with
particular countries (including the risk of government
intervention and confiscation of assets) or factors specific to
particular secters, based on the diversification requirements
inherent in the Company’s investment policy

» Income/dvidend nsk - The amount of dividends and future
dividend growth will depend on the Company’s underlying
portfollo Any change in the tax treatment of the dvidends or
Interest received by the Company (Including as a result of
withholding taxes or exchange controls imposed by jurisdictions
in which the Company invests) may reduce the ievel of
dividends recewved by shareholders The Board monitors this
risk through the receipt of detalied income forecasts and
considers the level of income at each meeting

» Regulatory risk - The Company operates as an investment trust
In gccordance with the requirements of Chapter 4 of Pari 24 of
the Corporation Tax Act 2010 As such, the Company 1s exempt
from capital gains tax on the profits reatised from the sale of its
investments The Investment Manager monitors investrment
movements, the level and type of forecast income and
expenditure and the amount of quarterly dividends to ensure
that the provisions of Chapter 4 of Part 24 of the Corporation
Tax Act 2010 are not hreached and the results are reported to
the Board at each meeting

The Company must also comply with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006 and, as its shares are admitted to the
Official List, the UKLA Listing Rules, the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules and the Prospectus Rules A breach of the
Compames Act 2006 could result in the Company and/or the
Directors being fined or the subject of cniminal proceedings
Breach of the UKLA Listing Rules could result in the Company’s
shares being suspended from hsting, which in turn would
breach the requirements of Chapter 4 of Part 24 of the
Corporation Tax Act 2010 The Board relies on the services of
its professional advisers and its Company Secretary to ensure
comphance with all relevant reguiations The Company
Secretary has stningent comphance procedures in place and
maonitors regulatory developments and changes
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Operational nsk - In commanwth most other invesiment trust
companies, the Company has no employees The Company
therefore relies upon the services provided by third parties and
ts dependent on the ¢ontrol systems of the Investment
Manager and the Company’s other service providers The
security, for example, of the Company’s assets, dealing
procedures, accounting records and maintenance of regulatory
and legal requirements, depend on the effective operation of
these systems These are regularly tested and monitored and an
internal control repart, which inciudes an assessment of risks
together with procedures to mitigate such nisks, 1s prepared by
the Investment Manager and reviewed by the Audit and
Management Engagement Committee at least twice a year The
custodhan, Bank of New York Mellon {International) Limited
(“BNYM™) and the investment Manager also produce mternal
controls reports on a quarterly and annual basis respectively,
which are reviewed by their respective auditors and give
assurance regarding the effective operation of controls

Market risk - Market risk anses from volatility (n the prices of
the Company’s investments k represents the potential loss the
Company might suffer through holding investments in the face
of negative market movemeants The Board considers asset
atlocation, stock selection, unguoted investments and levels of
gearnng on aregular basis and has set investment restrictions
and guidelines which are monitored and reported on by the
Investment Manager The Board meniters the implementation
and results of the investment process with the Investment
Manager

Liquidity nisk - Investments in the Company’s portfolio are
subject to hquidity risk, particularly from any unquoted
investments The Company may also invest in smaller
capitalisation companies or the secunties markets of
developing countries which are not as large as the more
established securnities markets and have substantially fess
trading volume, which may result in a lack of iquidity and higher
price volatihity

Financial nigk - The Company’s investment activities expose It to
a vanety of financial nsks that mclude market price risk, foreign
currency risk and interest rate nsk These factors are taken into
consideration by the Directors when determining the valuation
of unquoted holdings Further detalls are disclosed in note 19,
together with a summary of the policies for managing these
risks and hqudity and credit nsks

Sector nsk - Changes in general econemic and market
conditions in the different countries in which the business in
which the Company may invest operate, such as interest rates,
exchange rates, rates of inflation, industry conditions,
competition, political events and trends, tax laws, nationat and
international conflicts, economic sanctions and other factors
can substantially and adversely affect the securnities and, as a
consequence the Company's prospects and share price
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»  Third party nsk - The Company has no employees and the
Directors have all been appointed on & non executive basis The
Company must therefore rely upon the performance of third
party service providers to perform its executive functions In
particular, the Investment Manager, the Administrator, the
Registrar, the Custodian and their respective delegates, if any,
will perform services that are integral to the Company’s
operations and financial performance Failure by any service
provider to carry out its abligations to the Company in
accordance with the terms of its appointment, to exercise due
care and skill, or to perform its obligations to the Company at all
as a result of insolvency, bankrupicy or other causes could have
a matenal adverse effect on the Company’s performance and
returns to helders of Ordinary Shares The termination of the
Company's relationship with any third party service provider or
any delay in appointing a replacement for such service provider,
could matenally disrupt the husiness of the Company and could
have a matenal adverse effect on the Company’s performance
and returns to helders of Ordinary Shares

Social and community 1Ssues

As an investment trust, the Company has no direct social or
community responsibilities However, the Company betieves that it
18 i shareholders’ interests to consider environmental, social and
governance factors when selecting and retaining investments
Details of the Company’s policy on secially responsible investments
are set out on page 30

Future prospects

The Board’s main focus 15 the achievement of an annual dwdend
target together with the generation of long term capital growth The
future performance of the Company 1s dependent upon the success
of the investment strategy and, to a large extent, on the
performance of financial markets The outlook for the Company is
discussed In the Investment Manager’s Report on page 11

Investment management and administration

BlackRock provides management services ta the Company under a
contract dated 21 November 2005 which 1s terminable upon six
months’ notice by either party BlackRock also acted as the
Secretary and administrater of the Company throughout the year

BlackRock recerves an annual management fee of 1 1% of gross
assets The value of any investment in BlackRock managed funds
(with the exception of BlackRock’s Institutional Cash Fund, for
which the Investment Manager receives no fee}, 1s excluded when
calculating the management fee

No penalty on termination of the investment management
contract will be payable by the Company in the event that six
months’ written notice 1s given to BlackRock There are no
provisions in the management agreement relating to payment of
fees in heu of notice
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BlackReck 1s a subsidiary of BlackRock, Inc which 1s a publicly
traded corporation on the New York Stock Exchange operating as
an independent firm The PNC Financiat Services Group, Inc has a
sigruficant economic interest in BlackRock, Inc PNC Financial
Services Group, Inc 15 2 US pubke company

BNYM is the custodian of the Company’s assets BNYM recewves a
fee payable at rates dependent on the number of trades effected
and the location of securties held The custodian agreement 1s
subject to 30 days’ notice of termination by either party

Appointment of the Investment Manager

The Board considers the arrangements for the prowision of
Investment managament and other services to the Company on an
ongoing basis and a formal review s conducted annually As part of
this review the Board considers the quality and continuity of the
personnel assigned to handle the Company’s affairs, the investment
process and the results achieved to date

The Board has concluded that it i1s In the interests of shareholders
as a whoie that BlackRock should continue as investment Manager
of the Company on the terms set out In the management
agreement dated 21 November 2005 Furthermoare, the specialist
nature of the Company’s investment remit 1s, in the Boards view,
pest served by the Natural Resources team at BlackRock, which
has a proven track record in successfully investing in the
commadities sector

The principal contents of the agreement with the Investment
Manager have been set out in the previous section Having
considered the terms of this agreement, and those of other
investment trust companies, the Board considers that the terms of
the agreement represent an appropriate balance between cost and
incentivisation of the Investment Manager

Change of control
There are no agreements which the Company 1s party to that might
be affected by a change of control of the Company

Vating policy

The exercisa of voting nights attached to shares in the Company’s
portfolio has been delegated to the Investment Manager, whose
voting policy states

» we intend to vote at atl shareholder meetings of compan:es in
which our chients are invested In cases where there are
significant obstacles to voting such as share-blocking or
requirements for a power of attorney we will review the
resolutions to assess the extent of the restrictions on voting
against the potential benefits,




» we will vote in favour of proposals which we expect to enhance
shareholder value, and on routine 1ssues where we are
supportive of a company’s management,

» we will vote against proposals which we believe may damage
sharehotders’ rights or econemic interests, and

» we will abstain on proposals where we wish to indicate to the
company issues over which we have some concerns

tn all situations the economic interests of our clients will be
paramount

Further details of the Investment Manager’s Proxy Voting and
Engagement Principles may be found at www2 blackrock com/
global /home faboutus / proxyvoting

During the penod under review, the Investment Manager voted on
705 proposals at 57 general meetings on behalf of the Company At
these meetings the Investment Manager voted in favour of most
resofutions, as should be expected when investing in well run
companies, but voted against 17 management resolutions and
abstained from 11 Most of the votes aganst were in respect of
resolutions to approve the remuneration report where the
remuneration committee had demonstrated poor use of discretion,
poorly structured severance packages, or to re-elect directors with
a poor attendance record

Going concern

The financial statements of the Company and the Group have

been prepared on a gong concern basis The Directors helieve
that this 1s the appropriate basis as forecast projections and actual
performance are reviewed on a regular basis throughout the year
and the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and 1s financially sound

The Group 1s able to meet all of its habilities from its assets and
the ongoing charges are approximately 1 3% of the net assets

Directors

The Directors of the Company on 30 November 2012 are set out
in the table below together with their interests in the ordinary
shares of the Company All of the Directors, with the exception of
Mr Gibbs, who retired as a Director of the Company an 13 March
2012, held office throughout the year under review

30 November 30 November

2012 2011
A C Hodson 150,000 150000
D A S Gibbs n/fa 22,454
M R Merten - -
{ G Ruck Keene 14,000 14,000
H van der Klugt 35,000 35,000
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All of the holdings of the Directors and their families are beneficial
No changes to these holdings had been notified up to the date of
this report

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, one-third
of the Directors will retire from office and offer themselves for
re-election In addition, any Director who was a Director at the
preceding two AGMs and who has not retired in the interim, will
offer himself for re-election so that each Director s re-elected every
three years At the AGMin 2013, in accordance with the provisions
of the Articies of Association, Mr van der Klugt wili retire by rotation
in accordance with the UK Listing Authanity’s Listing Rules, as an
employee of the Investment Manager, Mr Ruck Keene 1s subject to
annual re-election Mr van der Klugt and Mr Ruck Keene will
accordingly offer themselves for re election at the forthcoming
AGM As a managing director of the Company’s Investment
Manager, Mr Ruck Keene 1s deemed to be interested in the
Company’s management agreement

There were no other contracts subststing during or at the end of the
year n which a Director of the Company 1s or was matenally
interested and which 1s or was significant in refation to the
Company's business None of the Drrectors 1s entitled to
compensation for loss of office on the takeover of the Company

Biographies of the Directors are detailed on page 16

Directors’ Indemnity

in addition to Directors’ and Officers’ hability insurance cover, the
Company's Articles of Association provide, subject to the prowisions
of applicable UK legislation, an indemnity for Directors in respect of
costs incurred 1n the defence of any proceedings brought against
them by third parties ansing out of their positions as Directors, m
which they are acquitted or judgment 1s given in their favour The
Company has entered mto Deeds of Indemnity with each of the
Directors indmidually which are avaslable for inspection at the
Company's registered office and will be available at the AGM

Conflicts of Interest

The Board has put in place a framework in order for the Directors to
report conflicts of interest, or potential conflicts of interest which it
considers has worked effectively during the year

All of the Birectors have notified the Company Secretary of any
situahions where they consider that they have a direct or indirect
mterest, or duty that conflicts, or possibly conflicts, with the
interests of the Company All such situations are reviewed by the
Board and duly authonsed Directors are also made aware that
there remains a continuing obligation to netify the Company
Secretary of any new situation that may anse, or any change to a
Situation previously notifled The Board reviews ail notified situations
at each Beard meeting
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Articles of Association
Any amendments to the Company’s Articles of Association must be
made by special resclution

Directors’ Remuneration Report

The Directors’ Remuneratton Report I1s set out on pages 25 and 26
An ordinary resolution to approve this report will be put to members
at the forthcoming AGM No person's entitlement to remuneration
15 conditional upon the resolution being approved

Substantial share interests

As at 30 November 2012, the Company had recewed notification
In accordance with the FSA's Disclosure and Transparency

Rule 5 1 2 R of the following interests in 3% or more of the voting
rights attaching to the Company’s 1ssued share capital

Nurmber of
Ordinary % of 1ssued
Shares*  share capital

Investec Wealth & Investment

Management Limited 10,266,327 109
Henderson Global Investors Limited 4,760,654 51
Rathbane Brothers Plc 4,637,208 49
Charles Stanley 4,485,114 48

as at.he fatest date of nontication

The Board 1s also aware that 2 2% of the Company's share capital
was held through the BlackRock Investment Trusts Savings Plan and
ISA as at 30 November 2012

As at 15 January 2013, the Company had received notification

in accordance with the FSA's Disclosure and Transparency

Rule 5 1 2 R of the following interests in 3% or more of the voting
rights attaching to the Company's issued share capital

Number of
QOrdinary % of 1ssued
Shares*  share capital

Investec Wealth & Investment

Management Limited 10,266,327 09
Henderson Glabal Investors Limited 4,760,654 51
Rathbone Brothers Plc 4,637,208 49
Charles Stanley 4,485,114 48

75 at Jhe Jatest dave of notfication

The Board 1s aware that 2 2% of the Company’s share capital was
held through the BlackRock investment Trusts Savings Plan and ISA
as at 15 January 2013

Mo cther shareholder had notified an interest of 3% or mare in the
Company’s shares up to 15 January 2012
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Foreign exchange

At the financial year end, approximately 81 2% of the Company's
portfolio was invested in non-Sterling assets, with 18 0% invested
in the US The Investment Manager does not actively hedge
currency exposure

Derwvative transactions

During the year the Group entered into a number of denvative
optien contracts generatimg option premium Income of £1,894,000
(2011 £1,822,000) Eight contracts remained open at

30 Novernber 2012, details of which are given in the investment
listing on pages 13to 15 All open call options were fully covered

Donations
The Company made no pohitical or charitable donations durning
the year

Payment of suppliers

It e5 the pohcy of the Group to settle all investment transactions 1n
accordance with the terms and conditions of the relevant market in
which 1t operates Supphers of goods and services are generally
paid within 30 days of the date of any invoice At 30 November
2012 the Company had no trade creditors

Share capital

Full detads of the Company’s 1ssued share capital and voting

rights are given in note 14 on page 47 Details of the voting nights
In the Company’s shares as at the date of this report are also given
In note 14 to the Notice of Annual General Meeting on page 64
The ardinary shares carry the nght to receive dividends and have
one voting right per ordinary share There are no restrictions on
the voting rights or on the transfer of the ordinary shares There are
no shares which carry specific rights with regard to the control of
the Company

The Directors consider that it 1s in the interests of shareholders

as a whole that the price of the ordinary shares reflects, as closely
as possible, the NAV per share The Directors will consider the 1ssue
at a premmm or repurchase at adiscount of ordinary shares to
correct any supply/demand imbatance in the market Any such
1ssues or repurchases will enhance the net asset value for
continusng shareholders

Durnng the year the Company 1ssued shares on eleven separate
occasions and 3,750 000 ordinary shares in total were 1ssued at an
average price of 125 22 pence per share for a total consideration of
£4,696,000 befare the deduction of 1ssue costs Detalls of the
allottees are set out i the following table




Total  Average

Number Shares Pncerange consideration  premum

Allottee of i1ssues 1ssued [pence) £000 %
JPMorgan 11257 to

Cazenove 9 3300000 134 27 4,194 16
winterflood 11100t

Securities 2 450,000 113 00 502 12

During the year there were no shares held in treasury (2011 nil)
There are no shares currently held in treasury (2011 il

Tender offers

The Board concluded that it would not exercise its discretion to
operate the half yearly tender offers in August 2012 and February
2013

The Directors are proposing that thewr authornty to make further
regular tender offers be renewed at the forthcaming AGM

Share repurchases

No ordinary shares were purchased during the year The current
authority to repurchase erdinary shares was granted to Directors on
13 March 2012 and will expire on the conclusion of the
forthcoming AGM The Directors considered that it was
unnecessary to buy back any shares as there was demand for the
Company's shares in the market and any discount at which the
shares traded to their underlying net asset value remained narrow
The average premium at which the shares traded during the year
was | 0%

The Directors are proposing that their authority to buy back shares
be renewed at the forthcoming AGM

The man objective of any buy back is to enhance the NAV per
share of the remaining shares and to reduce the absolute level and
volatility of any discount to NAV at which shares may trade
Although the Investment Manager would initiate any buy back, the
pclicy and parameters are set by the Board and reviewed at regular
intervals The Company would raise the cash needed to finance any
purchase of shares either by selling securities in the Company's
portfolio or by short term borrowing

Treasury shares

The Board has determined that up to 10% of the 1ssued shares of
the Company may be held in treasury and may be subsequently
cancelled or sold for cash in the market Currently, the Company
does not have any shares in treasury but any such shares wouid
only be reissued at prices at or above the prevalling NAV per share
thereby gwing the Company the ability to rerssue shares quickly
and cost effectively, improving iquidity and providing the Company
with additional flexibility in the management of its capital base It
also ensures a positive overall effect for shareholders when shares
are bought back at a discount and then sold at a price at or above
the NAV per share

Annual Report ana Financial Statements 30 Movernber 2012

At the 2012 AGM, the Company was authonsed to repurchase Its
own shares to be held in treasury for reissue or cancellation at a
future date Resolutions to renew the authorty to reissue shares
from treasury will again be put to shareholders at the AGM in 2013
Both the repurchase of shares and the use of treasury shares
should assist the Investment Manager in the objective of prowiding
a discount management mechanism and enhancing the NAV of the
Company’s shares This will provide the Directors with additional
flexibility to manage the Company's investment portfolio

Annual General Meeting

The following information to be discussed at the forthcoming
AGM 1s important and requires your immedate attention

If you are in any doubt about the actien you should take,

you should seek advice from your stockbroker, bank
manager, solicitor, accountant or other financial adwiser
authonsed under the Financial Services and Markets Act
2000 (as amended)

If you have sold or transferred all of your ordinary shares in
the Company you should pass this document, together with
any other accompanying documents including the form of
proxy, at once to the purchaser or transferee, or to the
stockbroker, bank or other agent through whom the sale or
transfer was effected, for onward transmission to the
purchaser or transferee

Resolutions relating to the following items of special business will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM

Resolution 7 Authornity to allot shares

The Directors may only alot shares for cash if authonsed to do so
by shareholders in a general meeting This resolution seeks
authority for the Directors to allot shares, for cash up to an
aggregate normuinal amount of £94,258 per annum whichs
equivalent to 9,425,800 ordinary shares of 1p each and 10% of the
Company’s 1ssued ordinary share capital as at the date of the
Notice of the AGM

The Directers will use this authonty when it 1s 1n the best interests
of the Company to 1ssue shares for cash This authonity will expire
at the conciusion of the AGM to be heid in 2014 unless renewed
prior to that date

Resolutton 8 Authonty to disapply pre-exemption rights

By law, Directars require specific authority from shareholders
before allotting new shares or selling shares out of treasury for cash
without first offering them to existing shareholders in proportion to
therr holdings
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Directors’ Report continued

Resolution 8 empowers the Directors to allot new shares for cash
or to sell shares held by the Company in treasury, otherwise than to
existing shareholders on a pro-rata basis, up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £94,258 which 15 equivalent to 9,425,800
ordinary shares of 1p each and 10% of the Company’s 1ssued
ordinary share capital as at the date of the Notice of the AGM Thig
authority will expire at the conclusion of the AGM to be held In
2013 unless renewed prior to that date

Resolution 9 Authority to buy back shares

The resolution to be proposed will seek to renew the authority
granted to Directors enabling the Company to purchase its
own shares

The Directors will only consider repurchasing shares in the market
if they believe it to be In sharehotders’ Interests and as a means of
correcting any imbalance between supply and demand for the
Company’s shares

Under the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty, the
maximurm price which can be paid is the higher of

1) 5% above the average of the market values of the ordinary
shares for the five business days immedately preceding the
date on which the purchase 1s made, and

1} the higher of the price quoted for
a the fast independent trade of, and
b the highest current independent hid for,

any number of ordinary shares on the trad:ing venue where the
purchase Is carried out

In making purchases, the Company will deal only with member
firms of the London Stock Exchange

The Directors are seeking authority to purchase up to 14,129,274
ardinary sharas, being 14 99% of the 1ssued share capital as at the
date of the Notice of the AGM This authority will expire at the
conclusion of the AGM to be held in 2013 unless renewed prior to
that date

Any ordinary shares purchased pursuant to resolution 9 shall be
cancelled immediately upon completion of the purchase or held,
sold, transferred or otherwise dealt with as treasury shares in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006
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Resoluttons 10 and 11 Regular tender offers

Resolutions 10 and 11 seek shareholder approval to renew the
authonties to operate semi annual tender offers in accordance with
the standard terms and conditions of the regular tender offers The
Directors are seeking authority to purchase up to @ maximum of
20% of the shares in 1ssue at each relevant tender offer date The
authonties, If renewed, will respectvely expire on 31 October 2013
and 30 Aprii 2014

Resolution 12 Amendment to the Articles

As a result of recent changes to tax rules, onshore investment
companies are now permitted to pay out accumulated realised
caprtal profits in the form of dividends While the Directors have no
present intentron of making use of such powers, they believe it
prudent to provide the Company with the necessary flexibility to do
so should it prove appropnate in the future Resolution 12 seeks to
amend the Company’s Articles of Association accordingly

Recommendation

The Board considers that each of the resolutions 1s ikely to
promote the success of the Company and 15 In the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole The Directors
unanimously recommend that you vote in favour of the resolutions
as they intend to do in respect of their own peneficial holdings

Corporate Governance

Full details are given n the Corporate Governance Statement on
pages 27 to 31 The Corporate Governance Statement forms part of
thrs Directors’ Report

Audit information

As required by section 418 of the Companies Act 2006 the
Directors who held office at the date of this report each confirms
that, so far as they are aware, there I1s no relevant audit information
of which the Company's Auditor is unaware and each Director has
taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to
make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company’s Auditor 15 aware of that information

Auditor

The Auditor, Emst & Young LLR 1s willing to centinue in office
Resoluticns propesing the reappomtment of Ernst & Young LLP and
authorising the Directors to determine the Auditor's remuneration
for the ensuing year witl be submitted at the AGM

By order of the Board

BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited
Secretary

18 January 2013
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

The Board presents the Directors’ Remuneration Repaort for the year
ended 30 November 2012 which has been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of Sections 420-422 of the Companies Act
2006 An ordinary resclution for the approval of this report will be
put to members at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

The law requires the Company's Auditor to audit certain of the
disclosures provided Where disclosures have been audited, they
are indicated as such The Auditor’s opimon 1s included in therr
report on pages 33 and 34

Remuneration Committee

The Board as a whaole fulfils the function of the Remuneration
Committee, which meets when necessary to censider any change
in the Directors’ remuneration policy The Board s of the opinion
that a separate Remuneration Committee 1s not appropnate for a
Company of this size and nature and a separate Committee has
therefore not been established The Company’s Directors are all
non-executive and are mdependent of the Investment Manager with
the exception of Mr Ruck Keene The Company has no employees

Remuneration Policy

The Board'’s policy 1s that the remuneration of the Directors needs
to be sufficient to attract and retain Directors with suitable
knowledge and experience and should be fair and reasonable m
relation to the duties and responsibilities involved 1t 1s intended
that this policy will continue for the forthcoming year

The Secretary provides a comparisen of the Directors’ remuneration
with other investment trusts of a similar size and /or mandate
together with any data published by the Association of Investment
Companies This comparison, together with consideration of any
alteration in non-executive Directors’ responsibilities, 1s used to
review whether any change In remuneration I1s necessary

Performance

The following graph compares the Company’s NAV and share price
performance with the performance of an equivalent investment in a
compasite index, 50% HSBC Global Mining index and 50% MSCI
World Energy Index Tius composite index 1s deemed to be the most
appropnate as the Company has both global mining and energy
investment objectives
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Remuneration/Service Contracts

The maximum remuneration of the Directors i1s determimed within
the aggregate hmit set out tn the Company’s Articles of Association
which currently amounts to £150,000 per annum No element of
the Directors’ remuneration 1s performance related The Company
has not awarded any share apticns or long term performance
incentive to any of the Directors

None of the Directers has a service contract with the Company or
recewves any non-cash benefits or pension entitlements The terms
of thewr appontment are detailed in a letter sent to them when they
join the Board These letters are available for inspection at the
registered office of the Company

Directors’ remuneration

Year ended Year endad

30 November 30 November

2012 2011

Director £ £
Alan Hodson (Chairmany 30,000 28,000
David Gibbs * 6,000 18,000
Michael Merton 20,000 18,000
jonathan Ruck Keene - -
Humphrey van der Klugt 23,000 21,000
79,000 85 000

Mr Dawvid G:bbs retired as a Director of the Company on 13 March 2012

The mformation in the table above and the following paragraph have
been audited
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Directors’ Remuneration Report continved

For the year ended 30 November 2012, the annuai remuneration of
the Chairman was £30,000, the Chairman of the Audit and
Management Engagement Committee £23,000 and the other
Directors £20,000 Mr Ruck Keene waived the entittement to his
fees With effect from 1 December 2012 the annual remuneration
of the Chairman was increased to £32,000, the Chairman of the
Audit and Management Engagement Committee to £24,000 and
the other Directors to £21,000

Mr Ruck Keene devotes a portion of his time employed as Chairman
of BlackRock's Specialist Chent Group to serve as a Director of the
Company An apportionment of his remuneration on a time served
basis from employment by an affiliate of the Investment Manager
would materially equate to the fees recewed by the other Directors
of the Company for simitar qualifying services

Compensation for loss of office
No Director has been compensated for loss of office, or1s entitled
to compensation

Retirement of Directors
All of the Company’s Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
i accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association

By order of the Board
BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited

Secretary
18 January 2013

\<\/ ‘v&:@/&
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Corporate Governance

Chairman’s Introduction

Corporate governance I1s the process by which the board of
directors of a company looks after shareholders' interests and by
which it seeks to enhance shareholder value Shareholders hold the
directors responsible for the stewardship of a company's affairs,
delegating authority and responsibility to the directors to manage
the company on their behalf and holding them accountable for

Its perfermance

The Board 1s ultimately responsible for framing and executing the
Company's strategy and for closely monitoring risks We aim to run
our Company in a manner which Is responsible and consistent with
our belief in honesty, transparency and accountability In our view,
good governance means managing our business well and engaging
effectively with investors We consider the practice of good
governance {0 be an integral part of the way we manage the
Company and we are committed to maintaining high standards of
financial reportmg, transparency and business integrity

As a UK-iisted investment trust company our principal reporting
obligation 1s driven by the UK Corporate Governance Code

{the “UK Code™) 1ssued by the Financial Reporting Council The
most recent version of the UK Code was published by the FRC on
28 September 2012 and applies to financial years commencing on
or after 1 October 2012 However, as listed investment companies
differ m many ways from other listed companies, the Association of
Investment Companies has drawn up its own set of giidelines, the
AIC Code of Corporate Governance {“the AIC Code”) 1ssued in
October 2010, which addresses the governance 1ssues relevant to
Investment compantes and meets the approval of the Financial
Reporting Council

Thus report, which 1s part of the Directors’ Report, explains how the
Board addresses its responsibility, authority and accountability and
sets out how the relevant principles of governance are applied to
the Company

Compliance

The Board has made the appropriate disclosures in this report to
ensure that the Company meets its continuing obligat:ons it should
be noted that as an investment trust, most of the Company’s

day to day responsibilities are delegated to third parties, the
Company has no employees and the Directors are non-executive
Thus, not all of the provisions of the LK Code are directly applicable
to the Company

The Board considers that the Company has complied with the
recommendations of the AIC Code and the provisions contained
within the UK Code that are relevant to the Company throughout
this accounting period, except where explained below, and this
statement describes how the relevant principles of governance are
applied to the Company
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Board Composition

The Board currently consists of four non-executive Directors Wth
the exception of Mr Ruck Keene, who 1s an employee of the
Investment Manager, all are considered to be iIndependent of the
Company’s Investment Manager and free from any business or
other relationship which could materially interfere with the exercise
of their mdependent judgement The provision of the UK Code

{A 2 1} which relates to the combination of the roles of chairman
and chief executive does not apply as the Company has no
executive directors The structure of the Board is such that it 1s
censidered unnecessary to identify a Semor Independent Director

The Directors’ biographies, on page 16, demonstrate a breadth of
investment knowledge, business and financial skils which enable
them to provide effective strategic ieadership and proper
governance of the Company

Directors’ appointment, retirement and rotation

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, a
Director appointed during the year 1s required to retire and seek
election by shareholders at the next AGM The Articles also require
that one third of the Directors retire by rotation each year and seek
re-election at the AGM Each Director also submits himself for
re-election at least every three years Any Director who 1s not
conswdered by the Board to be independent of the Investment
Manager or who has served on the Board fer more than nine years
1S subject to annual re-election

Subject to the requirements for re-election, Directors are
appointed to the Board for a specified period, nitially for three
years and subsequent extenstons are, In each case, at the
discretion of the Board

At the next AGM, as a non-independent director, Mr Ruck Xeene
will retire together with Mr van der Klugt who will retire in
accordance with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of
Association The Board has considered the position of Mr Ruck
Keene and Mr van der Klugt as part of the evaluation process and
believes that it would be in the Company’s best interests for them
to be proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM, given their
material levet of contribution

The Directors support a planned and progressive renewing of the
Board The Board's tenure and succession pohicy seek to ensure
that the Board 1s well-balanced through the appointment of new
Directors with the necessary skills and experience Directors must
be able to demonstrate commitment to the Company, including in
terms of trme

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
The terms of their appointment are detailed in a letter sent to
them when they join the Board These letters are available for
mspection at the registered office of the Company and are
avallable at each AGM
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Corporate Governance continued

Directors’ training and induction

When a new Director is appointed to the Beard, he or she 1s
provided with ali relevant information regarding the Company and
his or her duties and responsibilities as a Director In addition, a
new Director will also spend some time with representatives of the
Investment Manager whereby he or she will become familiar with
the various processes which the investment Manager considers
necessary for the performance of its duties and responsibilities to
the Company The Company’s policy 15 to encourage Directors to
keep up to date and attend training courses on matters which are
directly relevant to their mvolvement with the Company The
Directors also receive regular briefings from, amongst others, the
Auditor and the Company Secretary regarding any proposed
developments or changes in law or regulations that could affect
themselves or the Company

Directors’ hability insurance

The Company has maintained appropriate Directors” hability
msurance cover throughout the year, in respect of legal action
agawnst 1ts Directors

The Board's Responsibilities

The Board meets at least six hmes a year and may have additional
ad hoc meetings to consider other 1ssues as necessary

Between these meetings there 1s regular contact with the
Investment Manager

The Board 1s responsible to shareholders for the overall
management of the Company It reserves to itself decisions retating
to the determination of investment policy, any change 1n investment
strategy, strategic geaning policy, nolicy on the buy back and issue
of shares, whether to hold shares in treasury and entering into any
material contracts The Board also seis investment parameters,
such as the acquisition or disposal of substantial interests, the
maximum amount that may be invested in any one company and
the maximum amount that can be invested in unguoted securities
In addition, changes relat:ng to the Company's capital structure,
approval of circulars to shareholders and listing particulars,
relevant press releases and any significant change in accounting
policies or practices must also be referred to the Board A format
schedule of matters specifically reserved for decision by the Board
has been adopted

The Board 1s supplied in a timely manner with information m a form
and of a quality appropnate to enable It to discharge 1ts duties The
Board determenes strategic tssues and all operational matters of a
materiai nature

The Directors also have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary, who 1s responsible to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and that it comphes with
apphcable rules and regutations Where necessary, in the
furtherance of their duties, the Directors may seek independent
professianal advice at the expense of the Company
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The Board has responsibility for ensuring that the Company keeps
proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any tume the financial position of the Company and
which enable it to ensure that the financial statements comply with
the Compan:es Act 2006 Itis the Board's responsibility to present
a balanced and understandabie assessment, which extends to half
yearly and other price-sensitive public reports

The Beard 1s also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other wregulanties

Evaluation of the Board and its Committees

The Board reviews its performance on a regular basis and

a formal appraisal system has been agreed for the evaluation
of the Board, ##s Committees and the individual Directors,
including the Chairman

The annual evaluation for the year ended 30 November 2012 has
been carried out This took the form of questionnarres followed by
discussions to identify how the effectiveness of the Board's
activities, including 1ts Committees palicies or processes might be
enhanced The results of the evaluation process were presented to
and considered by the Board and it was agreed that the current
composttion of the Board and 1ts Commuttees reflected a suitable
mix of skills and expernence, and that the Board as a whole, the
indnadueal Birectors and its Committees were functioning effectively

Delegation of responsibihties
The Board has delegated the following areas of responstbility

Management and administration

The management of the investment portfolio and the administration
of the Company have been delegated to the Investment Manager
The Investment Manager, operating under guidelines determined by
the Board, has direct responsibility for the decisions refating to the
day to day running of the Company and 1s accountable to the Board
for the investment, financial and operating performance of the
Company Custody and settlement services are provided by The
Bank of New York Meiion (International} Limited (“BNYM™), a
subsidiary of the Bank of New York Mellon

The Board has delegated the exercise of voting rights attaching to
the securities held in the portfolio to the Investment Manager
Detalls of the Investment Manager’s voting policy are set out on
pages 20 and 21

Committees of the Board

Nomnation Commttee

During the year under review a Nomination Committee was
established comprising the whole Board [t Is responsible for Board
succession planning and should a vacancy occur or the Committee
decide to recruit new Board members, it will take into account the
size, batance and profile of the Board as a whole to identify any
areas that need strengthening




Appaintments of new Directors are made on a formalised basis and
the Committee will agree the selection ¢ritena and the method of
selection, recruiment and appointment Board diversity, including
gender wili be taken into account in establishing the criteria The
existing Directors will try to identify suitable inémiduals from their
range of contacts, aithough other sources, including external
search consultants, may also be used as required

The Investment Manager has no role in the appointment of
Directors to the Company and the final decision 1s taken by the
Board led by the independent Directors, all such appoiniments
are subject to confirmation by shareholders

The terms of reference of this Committee are available on request
and on the Investment Manager's website at www biackrock co uk/
brct under the “Further Literature” section and will also be available
at each Annual General Meeting The Committee will meet at least
once a year and more regularly as required

Remuneration Committee

As the Board 1s small and compnises only nan-executive Directors it
fulfils the functions of the Remuneration Commitiee Under the UK
Listing Rules, where an investment trust company has no executive
directors, the Code provisions relating to directors’ remuneration do
not apply Details of the Directars’ fees are given in the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 25 and 26 Remuneration of the
Chairman and the Directors 1s determined by the Board and s
reviewed aganst the fees paid to directors of other specialist
Investment trusts and investment trusts of a comparable size, as
well as taking account of any data published by the AiC

Audit and Management Engagement Committee

The Audit and Management Engagement Commitiee 1s chaired by
Mr van der Klugt and consists of all the Directors of the Company
except Mr Ruck Keene The Board considers that at least one
member of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee has
sufficient recent and relevant financial experience for it to
discharge its function effectively

The Chairman of the Company 1s a member of the Committee to
enable him to be kept fully informed of any 1ssues which may arise
The terms of reference of this Commuittee are available on request
and on the Investment Manager's website at www blackrock co uk /
brei under the “Further Literature” section and will also be avaiable
at each Annual General Meeting

The Audit and Management Engagement Committee meets at least
three times a year and, amongst ather things, examines the
effectiveness of the Company’s control systems Two of the three
nlanned meetings are held prior to the Board meetings to approve
the half yearly and annual results
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During the year the principal actvities of the Audit and
Management Engagement Committee included

» consdering and recommending to the Board for approval the
half yearly ang annual financial statements and the external
Auditor’s report thereon,

» reviewing the scope, results, cost effectiveness, independence
and objectivity of the externat Auditar,

» reviewing and recommending to the Board for approval the
audit and non-audit fees payable to the external Auditor and
ther terms of engagement,

» reviewing and approving the externai Auditor’s plan for the
following financial year,

P reviewng the appropriateness of the Company's accounting
policies,

» ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal
financial controls and internal control and sk management
systems, and

» considering the remuneration of the Investment Manager and
reviewing the terms of the investment management agreement

The Committee has also reviewed and accepted the
‘whistleblowing’ policy that has been put in place by the Investment
Manager under which (ts staff, in confidence, can raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting or other matters,
insofar as they affect the Company

The appointment of the Auditor 18 reviewed annually and the audit
partner changes at least every five years There are no contractual
obligations that restnict the Committee’s choice of Auditor

Non-audit service fees of £6,000 (excluding VAT) were paid to Emst
& Young LLP and these relate to their review of the half yearly
financial statements The Committee considers whether the skilfs
and experience of the Auditor make them a suitable suppher of the
non-audit service and whether there are safeguards in place to
ensure that there is no threat to their objectivity and independence
in the conduct of the audit resulting from the provision of such
services

On an annual basis Ernst & Young LLP review the independence of
therr relationship with the Company and report to the Board,
providing details of any other relevant relationships with the
Investment Manager The Board has conciuded that Ermnst & Young
LLP are independent of the Company and the Investment Manager




Corporate Governance contnued

The external Auditor 1 mvited to attend the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee meetings at which the annual and half
yearly accounts are considered At the meeting to consider the
annual accounts they have the opportunity to meet with the
Committee without representatives of the Investment Manager
being present

Attendance record

Audit and

Management
Engagement Nommation
Board Committee Committee
Number of Meetings held 6 3 1

Number of Meetings
attended

Alan Hodson {Chairman) 6 3 1
David Gibbs* 1 1 n/a
Michael Mertcn 4 3 1
Jonathan Ruck Keene 4 (not a member) 1
Humnphrey van der Klugt 4 3 1

Mr David Gibbs retired as a Director of the Company on 13 March 2012

Internal controls

The Board 1s responsible for establishing and mantaning the
Companry’s system of internal controls and for reviewing their
adequacy and effectiveness, for ensuring that financial information
published or used within the busmess Is reliable, and for regularly
monitoring compliance with regulations governing the operation of
Investment companies The Board reviews the effectiveness of the
internal control systems on an ongoing basis to identify, evaluate
and manage the Company’s significant nsks As part of that
process, there are procedures designed to capture and evaluate
any failings or weaknesses Should a matter be categonsed by the
Board as significant, procedures exist to ensure that necessary
action is taken to remedy the failings The Board 1s not aware of any
significant fallings or weaknesses ansing in the year under review

Control of the risks identified, covertng financial, operational,
complance and risk management, 1s embedded in the operations
of the Investment Manager and BNYM There 1s a monitering and
reporting process to review these controls, which has been in place
throughout the year under review and up to the date of this report,
carried out by the Investment Manager's corporate audit
department Thus accords with the FRC’s “Internal Conirol Revised
Guidance for Directors on the UX Corporate Governance Code”

The Investment Manager reports to the Company on its review of
mternat controls, formally on a semi-annual basis and verbatly at
each Board and Audit and Management Engagement Committee
meeting, and provides an annual report from the Invesiment
Manager's reporting accountants on the control policies and
procedures in operation The Audit and Management Engagement
Committee also recewes quarterly reports from BNYM on the
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mternal controls of its custodial operations, together with the
opinion of their reporting accountants

The Board recognises that these control systems can only be
designed to manage rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and tc provide reasenable, but not
absolute, assurance against matenal misstatement or loss, and
relies an the operating controls established by the Investment
Manager and BNYM

The Investment Manzager prepares revenue forecasts and
management accounts which allow the Board {o assess the
Company’s activities and review Iis performance at each Board
Meeting

The Board and the investment Manager have agreed clearly defined
nvestment criterra, specified !evels of authority and exposure imits
Reports on these 1ssues, including performance statistics and
investment valuations, are submitted to the Board at each meeting

The Company does not have 1ts own internal audit function, as all
the administration 1s delegated to the Investment Manager and
third party service prowiders The Board moniters the Investment
Manager's controls through the lnvestment Manager’s internal audit
department and feels that there 15 currently no need for the
Company to have its own internal audit function although this
matter 15 kept under review

Financial reporting

The Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the
Financial Statements 1s set out on page 32, the Report of the
Independent Auditor on pages 33 and 34 and the Statement of
Going Concern on page 21

Socially responsible investment

The Company invests pnmarily in the securities of companies
operating in the mining and energy sectors around the world The
Investment Manager’s evaluation procedures and financial analysis
of the companies within the portfolio Include detalled research and
appraisal The Company invests pmarily on financial grounds to
meet its stated objectives

The Investment Manager 1s supportive of the UK Stewardship Code,
which sets out the responsibilities of mstitutional shareholders in
respect of investee companies, and 1s voluntary, operating on a
comply or explain basis The Investment Manager's approach to the
LUK Stewardship Code, and policies on Socially Responsible
Investment, are detailed on their website www? blackrock com/
global/home /aboutus/proxyvoiing




Bribery prevention policy

The provision of bribes of any nature to third parties in order to gain
a commercial advantage 1s prohubited and 1s a cniminal offence The
Board has a zero tolerance policy towards bribery and a
commitment to carry out business fairly, honestly and openly The
Board takes its responsibiity to prevent brinery very seriously The
Investment Manager has anti-bribery policies and procedures in
place which are high level, proportionate and risk-based, which are
peniodically reviewed by the Board The Company’s other service
providers have been contacted in respect of their anti-bnbery
policies and, where necessary, contractual changes are made tco
existing agreements (n respect of anti-bribery provisions

Communication with shareholders

All shareholders have the opportunity to attend and vote at the
Annual General Meeting The Notice of Annual General Meeting
sets out the business of the Meeting and any item not of an entirely
routine nature 1s explained in the Directors’ Report The Notice of
Annual General Meeting and related papers are sent to
shareholders at least 20 working days before the meeting Separate
resolutions are proposed for substantive issues

Regutar updates on performance are avaiable to sharehclders and
the Investment Manager reviews the Company’s activities at the
AGM, where the Directors, including the Chairman of the Beard,
Alan Hodson, and the Chairman of the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee, Humphrey van der Klugt, and
representatives of the Investment Manager are available to answer
shareholders’ questions Proxy voting figures are announced to the
shareholders at the AGM and wili be made avallable on the
Investment Manager's websiie shortly after the Meeting

The Board regularty endeavours to take soundings from
shareholders The Board discusses with the investment Manager at
each Board meeting any feedback from meetings with
sharehelders, and it also receves reports from its corporate broker

There ts a section within this report entitled “Additional Shareholder
Information”, on pages 58 to 60, which provides an overview of
useful information available to shareholders

The Company's report and accounts are also published on www
blackrock co uk /brer, in the “Literature” section which s the
website maintained by the Company's Investment Manager,
BiackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited {“BlackRock™)
The work undertaken by the Auditer does not involve consideration
of the maintenance and integnty of the website and, accordingly,
the Auditor accepts no responsibility for any changes that have
occurred to the accounts since they were inttiglly presented on the
website Visitors to the website need to be aware that legislation In
the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
the accounts may differ from legislation in their jurnisdiction
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Disclosure and Transparency Rules

Other tnformation required to be disclosed pursuant to the
Drsclosure and Transparency Rules has been placed in the
Directors’ Report an pages 17 to 24 because 1t 1s information which
refers to events that have taken place during the course of the year
The fellowing 15 a bist of that information

» Drrectors’ shareholdings,

» Substantial share interests,

» Share capital,

» Share issues, and

» Share repurchases

By order of the Board

Alan Hodson

Chairman
18 January 2013

-
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the
Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors are respansible for prepanng the annual report, the
Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year Under that law, the Directors are required to
prepare the financial statements under IFRSs as adopted by the
European Umon Under Company law the Directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of
the profit or loss of the Group for that period

In preparing these Group financial statements, the Directors are
required to

» present farly the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Group,

» select suitable accounting pohicies in accordance with 1AS 8
Accounting Poilcres, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors and then apply them consistently,

» present information, including accounting policies, in a manner
that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
mfermation,

» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent,

» state whether the financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explamed in
the financiai statements, and

» provide additional disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirements i {FRSs as adopted by the European
Union 1s insufficient to enable users to understand the impact
of particutar transactions, ather events and conditions on the
Group's financial position and financial performance, and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis

unless 1t 1s Inappropriate to presume that the Group will
continue in business
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The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financizl positton of the Group and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other wregulanties The Directors are also
responsible for preparing the Director’s Report, the Directors’
Remuneration Report and the Corporate Governance Statement in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable
regulations, mcluding the requirements of the Listing Rules and the
Disclosure and Transparency Rules The Directors have delegated
responsibility to the Investment Manager for the maintenance and
integnty of the Group’s corparate and financial information included
on the investment Manager’s website Legislation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in cther junsdictions

Each of the Directors, whose names are {isted on page 16, confirm
to the best of their knowledge that

» the financia! statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union, give a
true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and
net profit/(loss) of the Group, and

» the annual report includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the positian of the Group,
together with a description of the principal nsks and
uncertainties that it faces

For and on behalf of the Board

/////w_\

Chairman
18 January 2013




Report of the Independent Auditor

to the members of BlackRock Commodities Income Iinvestment Trust plc

We have audited the financial statements of BlackRock
Commodities Income Investment Trust plc for the year ended

30 November 2012, which compnise the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income, Group and Company Statements of
Changes in Equity, Group and Company Statements of Financial
Posttion, Group and Company Cash Flow Statements, and the
related notes 1 to 20 The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in thear preparation 1s applicable law and International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European
Union and, as regards to the parent company financia! statements,
as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
2006

This report 1s made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Company's members those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest
extent perrmitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
te anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as
a body, for cur audit work, for this report, or for the epinions we
have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors
As explained more fully In the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities on page 32, the Directers’ are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and fair view Our responsibifity is to audit and
express an opinion on the financial statements In accordance with
apphicabte law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and
Iretand}] Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
diselosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reascnable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Group's and the Company’s circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adeguately disclosed, the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by the Directors, and the
overall presentation of the financial statements
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In addition, we read all the financial and non-financiat information in
the Company's 2012 annual report and financial statements to
identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements If we become aware of any apparent matenial
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for
our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion

» the Companyss financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of the Group’s and Company’s affairs as at
30 November 2012 and of the Group’s net profit/{loss}) for the
year then ended,

» the Group’s financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with I[FRS as adopted by the European Union,

» the Company's financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European
Union and as apphed in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006, and

» the Company's financial statements have been prepared In
accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the
|AS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006
In our opinion

» the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006, and

» the mfermation given in the Directors’ Report for the financial
year for which the financial statements are prepared 15
consistent with the financial statements
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Report of the Independent Auditor continued

to the members of BlackRock Commodities Income Investment Trust ple

Matters on which we are required to report by
exception
We have nothing to repert in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you
I OUr SPITIORN

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not wisited by us, or

» the Company’s financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

» certan disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law
are not made, or

» we have not receved all the information and explanations we
require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review

» the Directors’ statement on page 21 in relation to going
concern,

» the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to the
Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the June
2010 UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review,
and

» certain elements of the report to shareholders by the Beard on
Directors’ remuneration

el

Matthew Price

Senior Statutory Auditor

For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP
Statutory Auditor

London

18 January 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 30 November 2012

Revenue { Revenue Capital Capital Total Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Netes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Income from investments held at fair value through profit or
loss 3 4,724 4,625 - - 4,724 4,625
Other income 3 1,910 1,822 - - 1,910 1,822
Losses on investments held at farr value through
profit or loss 10 - -1 (10,890) (6.401) (10,890) (6,401)
Total revenue 6,634 6,447 | {10,890) (6,401) (8,256) 44
Expenses
Investment management fee 4 (307) (363) (922) {1,090 {1,229) {t,453)
Other expenses 5 (235) (268} - - (235) {268)
Total operating expenses {542) (631) (922) (1.090)] {1,464) (1.721}
Profit/{loss) before finance costs and taxation 6,092 5816 {(11,812)| (7,491 {5,720) {1,675}
Finance costs ) (8) (20) (22) (55} (30} (75}
Profit/{loss) before taxation 6,084 5796 | (11,834) (7.546) (5,750) {1,750}
Taxation (charge)/credit 7 {514) (475} 3 125 {511) (350}
Net profit/{loss) for the year after taxation 5,570 5321 | {11,831)] {7,421 (6,261) {2,100}
Earnings/{loss) per ordinary share 9 6 10p 588p| {12 96p) (8 20p) (6 86p) {2 32p)

The total column of this statement represents the Group's Consalidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, prepared in

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted by the European Union

The supplementary revenue and capital columns are both prepared under guidance pubkished by the Association of Investment

Companies (“AIC"} All items i the above statement derive from continuing operations No operations were acguired or discontinued
during the year All income (s attributable to the equity holders of BiackRock Commedities Income Investment Trust plc There were

no minarity interests

The total net loss of the Company and the Group for the year was £6,261,000 (2011 loss of £2,100,000)

The Group does not have any other recognised gains or losses The net profit/(loss) disclosed abeve represents the Group's total

comprehensive income /{loss}

The notes on pages 39 to 55 form part of these financial statements
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Statements of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 November 2012

Ordinary Share
share premium Special Capital Revenue

capital account reserve feserves reserve Total
Group Notes £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
For the year ended 30 November 2012
At 30 November 2011 905 20,778 71,223 22,638 3.098 118,642
Tota! comprehensive income
Net {loss)/prafit for the year - - - {11,831} 5,570 {6,261)
Transactions with owners, recorded directly to equity
Shares 1ssued 14& 15 38 4,658 - - - 4,696
Share 1ss5ue costs i5 - (7) - - - {7}
Dvidends paid 8 - - - - (5,407) (5,407}
At 30 November 2012 943 25429 71,223 10,807 3,261 111,643
For the year ended 30 November 2011
At 30 Novemnber 2010 205 20,748 71,223 30 059 2,913 125,848
Total comprehensive Income
Net (loss) /profit for the year - - - (7,421) 5321 {2,100)
Transactions with owners, recorded directly to equity
Wnite back of 1ssue costs 15 - 30 - - - 30
Dividends pard 8 - - - - {5 136} (5,136)
At 30 Novemnber 2011 205 20,778 71,223 22,638 3,098 118,642

Ordinary Share
share premium Special Capital Revenue

capital account reserve reserves reserve Total
Company Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
for the year ended 30 Novermnber 2012
At 30 November 2011 905 20,778 71,223 24,196 1,540 118,642
Total comprehensive iIncome
Net (loss)/profut for the year - - - {11,755) 5,494 (6,261)
Transactions with owners, recorded directly to equity
Shares 1ssued 14815 38 4,658 - - - 4,696
Share issue costs 15 - {7) - - - A
Dividends paid 8 - - - ~ {5,407} {5.407)
At 30 November 2012 943 25,429 71,223 12 441 1,627 111,663
For the year ended 30 November 2011
At 30 November 2010 905 20748 71,223 31,444 1,528 125,848
Total comprehensive income
Net {loss)/profit for the year - - - {7,248} 5,148 {2,100}
Transactions with owners, recorded directly to equity
Wiite back of 1ssue costs 15 - 30 - - - 30
Dwidends paid 8 - - - - [5 136} (5.13¢)
At 30 November 2011 905 20,778 71,223 24,196 1,540 118,642

The notes on pages 39 to 55 form part of these financial statements
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Statements of Financial Position

as at 30 November 2012

2012 2012 2011 2011
Group Company Group Company
Notes £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Non current assets
Investments held at fair value through profit or loss 10 115,118 116,752 120,961 122,519
Current assets
Other recevables 12 654 654 354 1,577
Cash and cash equivalents 75 26 - 46
729 680 354 1,623
Total assets 115,847 117,432 121,315 124,142
Current habilittes
Other payables 13 (951} {656) (557) (431)
Bank overdraft (3,233) {5,113} (2,116) (5,069)
(4,184) (5,769) (2.673) (5.500)
Net assets 111,663 111,663 118 642 118 642
Equity attributable to equity holders
Ordinary share capital 14 943 943 905 205
Share premium account 15 25,429 25,429 20,778 20,778
Special reserve 16 71,223 71,223 71,223 71223
Capital reserves 146 10,807 12,441 22,638 24 194
Revenue reserve 16 3,261 1,627 3,098 1,540
Total equity 111,663 111,663 118,642 118,642
Net asset value per ordinary share 9 118 47p 118 47p 131 08p 131 08p

The financial statements on pages 35 to 55 were approved and authorised for 1ssue by the Board of Directors on 18 January 2013

and signed on its behalf by Alan Hodson, Chairman

I e —

BlackRock Commodities Income Investment Trust plc

Registered in England, No 5612963

The notes on pages 39 to 55 form part of these financial statements
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Cash Flow Statements
for the year ended 30 November 2012

2012 2012 2011 2011
Group Company Group Company
Note £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Operating activities
Loss before taxation (5,750) {(5,919) {(1,750) {1,848}
Add back interest paid 37 37 68 67
Losses on investments held at fair value through profit or loss including
transaction costs 10,890 10,814 6,401 6,228
{Increase}/decrease n other recevables {15) 1,208 30 (1,193}
Increase /(decrease) in other payables 252 252 {520 {520)
{Increase}/decrease in araunts due from brokers {266) {266) 1,128 1,128
Decrease in amounts due to brokers - - (533) {533)
Movements in investments held at fair value through profit or loss (4,972) (4,972} {1,102) {1.102)
Net cash inflow from operating activities before
interest and taxation 174 1,154 3,722 2,227

inferest paid {37) (37} {68) (67}
Taxation (paid)/recovered (16) (16) {319) 119
Taxation on investment income included within gross income (372) (372) {394) {394}
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities (249) 729 2,941 1,885
Financing activities
Share 1ssue costs paid (7) (7) {320 {320)
Shares 1ssued 4,696 4,696 - -
Equity dmvidends paic 8 (5,407) {5,407) {5,136} {5,136}
Net cash outflow from financing activities (718) (718) {(5,456) {5 456)
{Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {967) 11 (2 515) {3.571)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of the year (2,116) (5,023) 374 (1.477)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (75) {75) 25 25
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year {3,158) {5,087) (2,116} (5,023)
Compnised of
Cash and cash equivalents 75 24 - 46
Bank overdraft (3,233) (5,113} (2,114} (5,068}

(3,158) (5,087) (2 116) (5.023)

The notes on pages 39 to 55 form part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company 1s that of an investment trust company within the meaning of section 1158 of the Corporation Tax
Act 2010

The principal actmity of the subsidiary, BlackRock Commaodities Secunties income Company Limited, 1s investment dealing and
options writing

2. Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted by the Group and the Company are set out below

(a) Basis of preparation

The Group and Parent Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union and as
applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 The Company has taken advantage of the exemption provided under
section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to publish its individual Statement of Comprehensive Income and related notes All of the
Group’s operations are of a continuing nature

The Group’s financia! statements are presented in Sterling, whtch is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group
cperates All values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£'000) except when ctherwise stated

Insofar as the Statement of Recommended Practice (*SORP”) for investment trust companies and venture capital trusts 1ssued by
the AIC, revised In January 2009 s compatible with IFRS, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with guidance set out
in the SORP

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 December
2012, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements Few of these are expected to have a significant effect on the
measurement of the amounts recognised in the financial statements of the Company IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” 1ssued i November
2009 will change the classification of financial assets, but is not expected to have an impact on the measurement basis of the financial
assets since the majority of the Company’s financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss

IFRS 9 (effective 1 January 2015} deals with classification and measurement of financal assets and its requirements represent a significant
change from the existing requirements m IAS 39 in respect of financial assets The standard containg two pnmary measurement categories
for financial assets at amortised cost and fair value A financiat asset would be measured at amortised cost if 1t 1s held within a business
model whose objective 1s to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and the asset’s contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding All other financial assets would be
measured at fair value The standard eliminates the existing |AS 39 categories of “held to maturity”, “available for sale” and “loans”

and “recewables”

IFRS 10 Consoldated Financial Statements (effective 1 January 2013) establishes a single control model that applies to ail entities including
special purpose entities IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements {effective 1 fanuary 2013) removes the ¢ption to account for jointly controfled entities
using proportionate consolidation IFRS 12 Disclosure of invelvement with Other Entities {effective 1 January 2013) now requires additional
disclosures that relate to an entity’s interests in subsidianies, Joint arrangements, associates and structured entities

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (effective t January 2013) establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value
measurements |t does not change when an entity 1s required to use farr value, but rather provides gurdance on how to measure fair value
under IFRS when fair value s required or permitted The Company I1s currently assessing the impact that this standard will have on the
financial position and performance

The standards are effective for subsequent annual penods beginning on or after 1 january 2013 but are not yet approved by the EU Earlier
application 1s permitted The Company does not plan to adept these standards early

{b) Basis of consolidation

The Group's financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Company and its whally owned subsidiary, which 1s registered
and operates in England and Wales, BlackRock Commodities Secunties Income Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

2 Accounting policies continyed

(¢] Presentation of the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

In order to reflect better the activities of an investment trust company and In accordance with guidance 1ssued by the AIC, supplementary
information which analyses the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income between items of a revenue and a capital nature has
been presented alongside the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 1n accordance with the Company’s status as an
investment trust under the previous provisions of section 1158 of the Carporation Tax Act 2010, net capital returns may not be distributed
by way of diwdend

{d) Segmental reporting
The Directors are of the opinien that the Group 1s engaged in a single segment of business being investment business

(e} Income

Dwidends recewvable on equity shares are treated as revenue for the year on an ex-dividend basis Where no ex-dividend date is available
dividends recervable on or before the year end are treated as revenue for the year Provision s made for any dividends not expected to be
received Special dvidends, If any, are treated as a capital or a revenue receipt depending on the facts or crcumstances of each particular
case The return on a debt secunity 1S recognised on a time apportionment basis so as to reflect the effective yield on the debt security
Interest iIncome 15 accounted for on an accruals basis Premia on wrtten opticns are recognised as Income

(f) Expenses
All expenses, including finance costs, are accounted for on an accruals basis Expenses have been charged wholly to the revenue column of
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income except as follows

» expenses which are incidental to the acquisition of an investment are included within the cost of the nvestment Details of transaction
caosts on the purchases and sales of investments are disclosed in note 10 on page 46,

» expenses are treated as capital where a connection with the maintenance or enhancement of the value of the investments can be
demonstrated, and

» theinvestment management fees and finance costs of borrowing barne by the Company have been allccated 75% to the capital column
and 25% to the revenue column of the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in line with the Board's expectations of the
long term split of return, in the form of capital gains and income respectively, from the investment portfolio

(g) Taxation

Deferred taxation is recognised in respect of all temporary differences that have onginated but not reversed at the financial reporting date,
where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay mere taxation in the future or right to pay less taxation in the future have
occurred at the financial reporting date This 1s subject to deferred taxation assets only being recogmised ifit 1s considered more likely than
not that there will be switable profits frem which the future reversal of the temporary differences can be deducted Deferred taxation assets
and labiltties are measured at the rates applicable to the legal junscictions in which they anse

(h) Investments held at fair value through profit or loss
The Company's investments are classified as held at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with IAS 39 “Financiat Instruments ‘
Recognition and Measurement” and are managed and evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with its investment strategy

Allinvestments are initially recognised as held at fair value through profit and loss Purchases of investments are recognised on a trade date
basts The sales of investments are recognised at the trade date of the disposal Proceeds are measured at fair value, which 1s regarded as
the proceeds of sale less any transaction costs

The fair value of financial instruments 1s based on their quoted bid price at the financial reporting date, without deduction for any estimated

future selling costs Unquoted investments are valued by the Directors at fair value using International Prvate Equity and Venture Capital
Associahon Guidelines Ths policy applies to all current and non current asset investments held by the Group
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Changes m the value of investments held at fair value through profit or loss and gains and losses on disposal are recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income as “Gains or losses on investments held at fair value through profit or loss™ Also included
within this heading are transaction costs in relation to the purchase or sale of investments

Under IFRS, the investment in the trading subsidiary Is carred at fair value which 1s deemed to be the total equity of the subsidiary

(1) Other recervables and other payables
Qther recevables and other payables do not carry any interest and are short term i nature and are accordingly stated at their nominal value

() Dividends payable

Under IFRS intenm dwidends are recognised when paid t¢ shareholders Final dividends, if any, are only recognised after they have been
approved by shareholders

(k) Foreign currency translation
Transactions involving fareign currencies are converted at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction

Foreign currency monetary assets and habihties are translated into Sterling at the rate ruiing on the financial reporting date Foreign
exchange differencas ansing on translation are recognised In the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income as a revenue or caprtal
item depending on the income or expense to which they relate

(I) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash in hand and on demand deposits Cash equivalents are short term, highly hquid investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant nisk of changes in value

(m) Bank borrowings
Bank overdrafts are recorded as the proceeds recewved Finance charges are accounted for on an accruals basis in the Censolidated

Statement of Comprehensive Income using the effective interest rate method and are added to the carrying amount of the instruments to
the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise

3 Income
20132 201
£'000 £'000

Investment Income
QOverseas Listed dvidends 3,979 3962
Fixed interest 152 3N
UK listed dividends 593 342
4,724 4 625
Other operating income

Deposit interest 3 -
Underwriting cormmission 13 -
QGption premium income 1,894 1,822
1,910 1.822
Total 5,634 6,447

Option premigm income 1s stated after deducting transaction costs incurred on the purchases and sales of investments
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

4 Investment management fee

2012 2011
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £°000 £000
Investment management fee 307 922 1,229 363 1,090 1,453

Details of the nvestment management contract are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on page 20 The investment management fee 1s levied
at arate of 1 1% of gross assets per annum based on the gross assets on the last day of each quarter and is allocated 25% to the revenue
column and 75% to the capital column of the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income The investment management fee s levied

guarterly, based on the gross assets on the last day of each quarter, and 1s charged 25% to the revenue column and 75% to the capital
column of the Consclidated Statement of Comgrehensive Income

5 Other expenses

2012 2011
£000 E£'000
Custody fee 18 24
Auditor’s remuneration
- audit services 24 24
- other services 6 5
Directors’ emoluments 79 85
Regstrar's fee 25 33
Other administrative costs 83 97
235 268
The Companys cngoing charges, calculated as a percentage of average net assets and using expenses,
excluding any interest costs and excluding taxation was 1 3% 13%
The Company’s engaing charges, calculated as a percentage of average net assets and using expenses,
excluding any interest costs and including taxation was 17% 1 6%

Fees paid to the Auditor for other services compnise £6,000 (2011 £5,500) relating to the review of the half yearly financial statements

6 Finance costs

2012 2011
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £ GO0 £'000
Interest ¢n bank overdrafts 8 22 30 20 55 75

Finance costs are charged 25% te the revenue column and 75% to the capital column of the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive

Income
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7 Taxation
a) Analysis of charge for the year

2012

2011
Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Current taxation
Corporation taxation 169 - 169 124 - 126
Overseas taxation 345 - 345 383 - 383
Pnior year adjustment - - - {29) - (29}
Total current taxation 514 - 514 480 - 480
Deferred taxation - (3) {(3) (5) (125) {130
Total taxation charge/(credit} (note 7b) 514 (3) 511 475 {125) 350
b) Factors affecting current taxation charge for the year
The taxation assessed for the year 15 lower than the standard rate of corporation taxation in the UK for a large company of 24 67%
{2011 26 66%) The differences are explaned below
2012 2012 2012
Revenue Capital Total
£000 £000 £'000
Total profit /{loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 6084 (11,834) (5,750}
Profit/{loss) on ordinary actiities multiphed by standard rate of corporatian taxation 24 67% 1,501 (2,919) (1,418}
Effects of
Non taxable capital loss - 2,686 2,686
Taxation effect of allowable expenses m capital (233) 233 -
UK dividends (146) - {146}
Non taxable overseas diidends (947) - {947}
Expense relief for overseas taxation (5) - (5)
Marginal relief {1 - (1}
Provision for Peruvian capital gains taxation - (3 (3)
Overseas taxation charge 345 - 345
{987) 2,914 1.929
Total corporaticn taxation charge /{credi) for the year (note 7a) o514 (3) 511
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7 Taxation continued
b) Factors affecting current taxation charge for the year continued

201 201t 2011
Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £000 £'000
Total profit/{loss) on ordinary activities before taxation 5,7%4 {7,546} {1,750)
Profit/{loss) on ordinary activities multiphed by standard rate of corperation taxation 26 66% 1,545 (2,012} (467)
Effects of
Non taxable capitat loss - 1,707 1,707
Taxation effect of allowable expenses in capital (305} 305 -
Prior year adjustment (29} - (29)
UK dmdends (91) - (91}
Non taxable overseas dividends {1021} - {1,021}
Effect of income taxable in different penods 3 - 3
Expense relief for overseas taxation (6 - (4}
Marginal rehef () - (4}
Prowision for Peruvian capital gains taxation - 3 3
Reversal of deferred taxation provision - {128) {128}
Overseas taxation charge 383 - 383
{1,070) 1,887 817
Total cerporatien taxation charge for the year {note 7a) 475 {125) 350

Investment trusts are exempt from corporation taxation on capital gams provided the Company obtams agreement from HM Revenue &
Customs that the tests outlined in Chapter 4 of Part 24 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 have been met

Due to the Company’s intention to meet the conditional requirement to obtain approval under section 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010

it has not provided for taxation on any capital gains

8 Dividends

Under IFRS final dividends, if any, are not recognised until approved by shareholders, and special and interim dwvidends are not recognised

until they are paid They are also debited directly to reserves The dimdends disclosed in the table below have been considered in view
of the requirements of section 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and section 833 of the Compantes Act 2006, and the amounts

declared meet the relevant requirements Amounts recognised as distnbutions to ordinary shareholders during the year to 30 November

2012 were as follows

2012 2011
£'000 £ 000
Fourth intenm dividend for the year ended 30 November 2311 - 1 55p (2010 1 475p) 1,403 1,335
First interim diwidend for the year ended 30 Novemnber 2012 - 1 4375p (2013 1 40p) 1,316 1,267
Second intenm divdend for the year ended 30 November 2012 - 1 4375p {2011 1 40p) 1,344 1,267
Third intenim dwidend for the year ended 30 November 2012 - 1 4375p (2011 § 40p} 1,344 1,267
5,407 5,136

For the year ended 30 Novernber 2012, a fourth interim dividend of 1 5875p (2011 1 55p} per ordinary share has been declared and will be

paid on 24 January 2013, to shareholders on the Company's register on 21 December 2012
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The total dividends payable in respect of the year which form the basis of section 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 are set out below

2012 2011
£000 £'000
First interim dwadend paid on 21 April 2012 of 1 43750 {2011 1 40p) 1,316 1,267
Second intenim dwadend paid on 22 July 2012 of 1 4375p (2011 1 40p) 1,344 1,267
Third intenm dmvidend paid on 21 October 2012 of 1 4375p (2011 1 40p) 1,344 1267
Fourth interim divsdend payable on 24 january 2013 of 1 5875p (2012 1 55p) 1,496 1.403
5,500 5,204
9 Consolidated earnings and net asset value per ordinary share
Revenue and capital earnings per share are shown below and have been calculated using the following
2012 2011
Net revenue profit atirbutable to ordinary shareholders (£'000} 5,670 5321
Net capital loss attnbutable to ordinary shareholders {£°000) (11,831) (7.421)
Total loss attnbutable to ordinary sharehoiders {£'000) (6,261) {2,100
Equity shareheclders funds {£°000) 111,663 118 642
The weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during each penod, on which the retun per ordinary
share was calculated was 91,308,022 20,508,000
The actual number of ordinary shares in 1ssue at the year end, on which the net asset value was calculated was 94,258,000 | 90,508,000
The number of ordinary shares in 1ssue including treasury shares at the year end was 94,258,000 90,508,000
Revenue earnings per share 6 10p 5 88p
Capital earnings per share {12 96p) {8 20p)
Total earmings per share (6 Bép) {2 32p}
Net asset value per share 118 47p 131 08p
Share price (ruid-market) 122 75p 127 75p
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10 Investments held at fair value through profit or loss

Group Company Group Company
2012 2012 2011 2011
£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Quoted investments hetd at fair value through profit or loss 115,118 115,118 120,548 120,548
Unguoted investments held at fair value through profit or loss - 1,634 413 1.971
115,118 116,752 120 961 122,519
Valuation brought forward 120,961 122,519 126,285 127,670
Investment holdings gatns (8,586) {10,144) {14,635) (16,020}
Opening cost of investments 112,375 112,375 111 650 111,650
Additions at cost 32,036 32,036 35,750 35,750
Disposals (27,064) (27,064) {34,648) (34,648)
Realised gains/(losses) 2,340 2,340 (377) {377)
Cost carned forward 119,687 119,687 112,375 112 375
Investment holdings (losses}/gains {4,569) {2,935) B,586 10,144
Closing valuation of investments 115,118 116,752 120,961 122,51¢

Transaction costs of £72,000 were incurred on the acquisition of investments (2011 £42,000) in the year Costs relating to the disposal of
Investments during the year amounted to £88,000 (2011 £37,000) All transachion costs have been mcluded within capital reserves

The Group and Company Investments are 1dentical with the exception of the Company’s equity Investment 1n its subsidiary which amounted

to £1,634,000{2011 £1,558,000)

Gans/{losses) on investments held at fair value through profit or loss

Group Company Group Company

2012 2012 2011 2041

£'000 £000 £000 £'000
Realised gain/{loss) on sales 2,340 2,340 (377) {377)
Movement in investment holding losses (13,155} (13,079) (6,049) {5,876)
Exchange losses on foreign currency transactions (75) {75) 25 25
(10,890) (10,814) (6,401) {6,228)

11 Investment in subsidiary

At 30 November 2012, the Company had one wholly owned subsidrary which 1s registered and operating 1n England and Wales BlackRock
Commodities Securities income Company Limited was incorporated on 9 Novernber 2005

Description of

Authorised and

ordinary shares 1ssued share capitai
2012 2011
BlackRock Commadities Secunties inceme Company Limited Ordinary shares of £1 £1 £1

Under IFRS, the investment in the subsidiary 1s camed at fair value which 1s deemed to be the total equity of the subsidiary which amaounts to

£1,634,000 (2011 £1,558,000)
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12 Other receivables

Group Company Group Company
2012 2012 201 2011
£000 £ 000 £000 £'000
Amounts due from brokers 266 266 - -
Amount due from subsidiary company - - - 1,223
Taxation recoverabte 110 110 9N 91
Prepayments and accrued (ncome 278 278 263 263
654 654 354 1577
13 Other payables
Group Company Group Company
2012 2012 2011 201
£000 £'000 £000 £'000
Corporation tax payable 295 - 150 24
Deferred taxation - - 3 3
Accrued expenditure 656 656 404 404
951 656 557 431
14 Share capital
Qrdinary Treasury Total Nornal
shares shares shares value
number number number £'000
Allotted, called up and fully paid share capital comprised
Ordinary shares of 1p each
Shares in 1ssue at 30 November 2041 90,508,000 - 90,508,000 205
Shares 1ssued 3,750,000 - 3,750,000 38
At 30 November 2012 94,258,000 - 94,258 000 943

The number of crdinary shares inissue at the year end was 94,258,000 of which none were held in treasury (2011 nil)

The ordinary shares carry the right to receive any dividends and have one votng night per ordinary share There are ng restrictions on the

voting rights of the ordinary shares or on the transfer of the orginary shares

15 Share premium account

2012 2011

£000 £'000

At start of the year 20,778 20,748
{Issue costs}/write back of 1ssue costs (7 30
Premium on shares issued 4,658 -
At 30 November 25,429 20778
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

16 Reserves
Capital Capital
reserve reserve
- ansingon - arising on
Special | nvestments | investments Revenue
reserve sold held reserve
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
At 1 December 2011 71,223 14,052 8,586 3,098
Movement during the year
Net profit/ {loss) for the year - 1,324 (13,155} 5,570
Dmdends paid - - - (5,407)
At 30 November 2012 71,223 15,376 {4.569) 3,261
Capital Capstal
reserve reserve
- ansing on - ansing on
Special | investments | investments Revenue
reserve sald held reserve
Company £000 £000 £'000 £'000
At 1 December 2011 71,223 14052 10,144 1,540
Maovemen? duning the year
Net profit/(loss) for the year - 1,324 {13,079) 5,494
Dividends paid -~ - - {5,407)
At 30 Novermnber 2012 71,223 15,376 {2 935) 1,627

The special reserve may be used as distnbutable profits for all purpeses and i particular the acquisition by the Company of its own
ardinary shares

17 Transactions with the Investment Manager
The transactions with BlackRock are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 20

BlackRock Investment Management {UK) Limited (“BlackRock”™} provides management and adminsstration services to the Company under a
contract which is terminable on six months’ notice Detalls of the fees recevable by BlackRock in relation to these services are set out In
note 4 on page 42

The fees due to BlackRock for the year ended 30 November 2012 amounted to £1,229,000 (2011 £1,453,000) At the year end £519,000
was outstanding in respect of these fees (2011 £219,000}

18 Related party disclosure

The related party transactions with the Directors are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 21 and in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
on pages 25 and 26

The Beard consists of four non-executive Directors all of whom, with the exception of Mr Ruck Keene, are considered to be independent by

the Board, Mr Ruck Keene 1s an employee of the Investment Manager and 1s deemed to be interested in the Company's management
agreement

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Campany For the year ended 30 November 201 2, the Chairman recewved an annual
fee of £30,000, the Chairman of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee receved an annual fee of £23,000 and each other
Drrector recewved an annual fee of £20,000, with the exception of Mr Ruck Keene who has waived his entitlement to fees With effect from
1 December 2012 the annual remuneration of the Chairman was increased to £32,000, the Chairman of the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee to £24,000 and the other Directors to £21,000
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19 Risk Management policies and procedures

As an investment trust, the Company invests in equities and other investments for the long term so as to secure 115 investment objectives as
stated on pages 17 and 18 In pursuing its investment objectives, the Company is exposed to a vanety of nisks that could result in either a
reduction in the Company’s net assets or a reduction in the revenue available for distribution by way of potential dividends

These financial risks, market nsk (comprising currency nsk, interest rate nsk and market nsk}, liquidity sk and credit nsk, and the Directors’
approach to the management of them, are set out below The Investment Manager, in close co-operation with the Board of Directors,
co-ordmates the Company's risk management

The objectives, policies and processes for managing these nsks, are set out below, and have not changed from the previous accounting
penod

(1) Market risk

The fair value or future cash flows of 8 financial instrument held by the Company may fluctuate due to changes in market prices Market risk
comprises currency Tisk {see note 19(1)), interest rate risk (see note 19(n}) and market nsk (see note 19(w}) The Board of Directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing these nsks The Investment Manager assesses the exposure to market risk when making each mvestment
decision and monitors the overall level of market risk on the whole of the investment portfolio on an ongoing basis

(1) Currency nisk

A large proportion of the Company’s assets, habiities and income are denorminated in currencies other than Sterling (the Company’s
functional currency, and in which it reports its results) As a result, movements In exchange rates will affect the Sterling value of those items
As at 30 November 2012, the value of non-Sterling denominated investments amounted to £93,507,000 (2011 £3105,562,000)

Management of the risk
The investment Manager monitors the Group’s exposure to foreign currencies on a daily basis and reports to the Board on a regular basis

The Investment Manager does not normally hedge against foreign currency movement, but takes account of thus risk when making
investment decisions

Foreign currency borrowing facilities are avaiiable m the form of a multi-currency overdraft facibty to limit the Company’s exposure to future
changes in exchange rates which might otherwise adversely affect the value of the portfolic of investmments Income denominated in foreign

currency Is converted into Sterlmg on recetpt

The Group does not use financial instruments to mitigate the currency expesure In the perod between the time that mcome 1s included in
the financial statements and its receipt
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19 Risk Management policies and procedures continued

(n) Currency nisk continued
Foreign currency exposure

The far values of the Company’s monetary items which have foreign currency exposure at 30 November 201 2 are shown below Where the
Company’s equity investments which are not monetary items are denominated in a foreign currency, the prncipals have been included

separately i the analysis so as to show the overall exposure

Canadian Us
Dollar Dollar Euro Other
2012 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Debtars (due from brokers, dividends and other income recevable) 266 - 54 56
Cash at bank and on deposit 68 4 - 3
Total foreign currency exposure on net monetary items 334 4 54 59
Investments at fair value through profit or loss that are equities 16,604 56,084 8,248 11,971
Total net foreign currency exposure 16938 56,688 8,302 12,030
Canadian us
Dollar Dollar guro Other
2014 £000 £000 £000 £000
Debtars (due from brokers, dividends and other income recevable) 20 131 - -
Cash at bank and on deposit 14 2¢ 2 1
Total foreign currency exposure on net monetary items 104 160 2 1
Investments at fair value through profit or loss that are equities 16,87 55466 12,198 20,911
Total net foreign currency exposure 17,091 55,626 12,200 20,912

The above amounts are not representative of the net exposure to nsk during the year as levels of monetary foreign currency exposure

change significantly duning the year

Foreign currency sensitivity

The folfowing table illustrates the sensitivity of the profit after taxation for the year and the net assets in regard to the Company’s monetary
financial assets and financial habihties and the exchange rates for the portfolio's significant currency expaosures, these being Sterling/

Canadian Dollar, Sterling/US Dollar, Sterling/Eurc

It assumes the following changes (n exchange rates
Sterling/Canachan Dollar +/- 5% (2011 5%)
Sterling/US Dollar + /- 5% (2011 5%}
Sterling/Euro +/- 5% (2011 5%)

For the year ended 30 November 2012, a 5% sensitivity has been determined for all significant currency exposures in order to demonstrate

clearly the impact on net assets of a fixed percentage mavement in any of the matenal currencies

In the prior year percentages were determined based on the average market volatiity m exchange raies in the previous twelve months

The sensitivity analysis 1s based on the Company’s monetary foreign currency financial Instruments held at each financial reporting date No
consideration has been given to the impact of gearing on the grounds of immateriahity
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If Sterling had strengthened against the currencies shown, this would have had the following effect

2012 2011
Canadian uUs Canadian us

Dollar Dollar Euro Dollar Dollar Euro

£000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Projected change 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%

Impact on revenue return (31) (172) (23} 127) (60) (27)

Impact on capital return (784) (2,677} (3%0) {802) (2,619) (578)
Total return after taxation for the year/effect on

shareholders’ funds (815) (2,849} (413) {829) (2.679) {603}

If Sterling had weakened against the cusmencies shown, this would have had the following effect

2012 2011
Canadian us Canadian us

Dollar Dollar Euro Dollar Deliar Euro

£000 £000 £000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000

Projected change 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%

impact on revenue return 34 190 26 30 66 30

impact on ¢capital return 867 2,959 431 887 2,895 637
Total return after taxation for the year /effect on

shareholders’ funds 901 3,149 457 917 2961 667

Incorporated nto the impact on capital return 1s the result a change would have on the revaluation of affecied investments as held in the
portfolio at the reporting date

() Interest rate risk
Interest rate nsk movernents may affect the interest payable on the Company's vanable rate borrowings and the level of income recewvable on

cash deposits

Management of the risk

The passible effects on fair value and cash fiows that could anse are a result of changes In interest rates are taken nto account when
maksng investment decistons and borrowing under the multi-currency overdraft facility

The Company, generally, does not hold significant balances, with short term borrowtngs being used when required
The Company finances part of its activities through borrowings at levels approved and monitored by the board

Dervative contracts are not used to hedge against the exposure to interest rate nisk
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19 Risk Management policies and procedures continued

(m) Interest rate risk continued
Interest rate exposure

The exposure at 30 November 2012 of financial assets and liabilities to interest rate risk 1s shown by reference to

- fleating rate interest rates - when the interest rate 1s due to he re-set

- fixed interest rates - when the financial instrument is due for repayment

2012 2011
Within More than Within More than
one year one year Total one year one year Total

£'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £°000
Exposure to floating interest rates
Bank cverdraft (3,233) - (3,233) (2,116) - (2,116}
Cash at bank 75 - 75 - - -
Exposure to fixed interest rates
Fixed interest investments 695 - 695 413 2,987 3,400
Total exposure to interest rates (2,863) - (2,463) {1.703) 2,987 1,284

The above year end amounts are not representative of the exposure to interest rates during the year, as the level of exposure changes as
nvestments are made in fixed interest secunties, borrowings are drawn down and repaid, and the mix of borrowings between floating and
fixed interest rate change The Company has Iittle exposure to interest rates as the majonty of the financial assets are equity shares which
do not pay interest Therefore, the Company’s total iIncome and equity I1s not matenally affected by changes in interest rates

Interest recewable, and finance costs are at the following rates

Interest received on cash balances, or paid on bank overdrafts respectively for the year to 30 November 2012 was approximately 0 15% and

1 65% per annum (2011 0 15% and 1 73% per annum)

{v) Market risk and fair value hierarchy disclosures
The table below sets out fair value measurements using the IFRS 7 fair vaiue hierarchy

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
at 30 Novermnber 2012 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Investments 115,118 - - 115,118
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Levei 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
at 30 November 2011 £'000 £000 £7000 £'000
Investments 120,548 - 413~ 120,961

Level 3 assets comprise of the only unguoted secunty in the Company s portfolio, High Rever Gold

This was redeemed at par value on the maturity aate of 31 December 2011
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Categonisation within the hierarchy has been determmed on the basis of the lowest level input that Is significant to the fair value
measurement of the relevant asset as follows

Level 1 - valued using quoted prices In active markets for identical assets,
Level 2 - valued by reference to valuation techniques using observable inputs other than quoted prices Included in Level 1,

Level 3 - valued by reference to valuation techniques using inputs that are not based on abservable market data

2012 2011
Reconciliation of level 3 financiat assets £000 £'000
Cpeming balance 413 344
High River Gold redeemed at par (413) -
Total gains included in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income - 69
Closing balance - 413

Management of the risk

The Board manages the nsks mherent in the investment portfolio by ensuring full and timely access to relevant infermation fraom the
Investment Manager The Board meets regularly and at each meeting reviews investment performance The Board monitors the Investment
Manager's compitance with the Company’s objectives and 1s directly respensible for investment strategy and asset allocation

The Company’s exposure to other changes in market prices at 30 November 2012 on its quoted investments Is illustrated in the ‘Market
price nisk sensitvity’ paragraph below

Concentration of exposure to market price risks

An analysis of the Company’s investment portfolio 1s shown on pages 13 to 15 At 30 November 2012, this shows the majority of the
investments’ value 1s in US companies, with significant amounts alse in European and Canadian companies Accordingly, there is a
concentration of exposure to those countries, though it 1s recognised that an investment’s country of demicile or of listing does not
necessarily equate to the ecomonsc condittons in that country

Market price risk sensitivity

The followmg illugirates the sensitivity of the revenue after taxation for the year and the net assets to an increase or decrease of 20% in the
far values of the Company’s equities (2011 20%) This level of change 1s considered to be reascnably possible based on observation of
current market conditions in 2012 The sensitvity analysis 15 based on the Company’s equity exposure at each financial reporting date, with
all other variables held constant

The impact of a 20% (2011 20%) increase in the value of investments on the revenue return as at 30 November 20172 1s a decrease of
£48 000 (2011 £49,000} and on the capital return 1s an increase of £22,818,000 (2011 £24,004,000}

The impact of a 20% (2011 20%) decrease in the value of investments on the revenue return as at 30 November 2012 1s an in¢crease of
£48,000 (2011 £49,000} and on the capital return 1s a decrease of £22,818,000 (2011 £24,004,000}
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19 Risk Management policies and procedures continued
(v) Liqusdity risk
This 15 the nisk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial labiities

The Company maintains a diversified portfolio consisting almost entirely of isted securities and, in general, does not have holdings which are
unduly large in individual securities The Investment Manager has regard to the hquidity of the indwidual secunities when making investment
decisions, and the Company manages its hquid resources to ensure sufficient cash s available to meet 1ts contractual commitments

The Board gives guidance to the Investrment Manager as to the maximum amounts of the Company’s resources that should be invested
In any cne cempany The Company may from time to time use borrowings to gear its investment portfolio The Investment Manager
may also hald a net cash position when they consider it advantageous to do so The Company has an overdraft facility of £20 million
(2011 £20 mulion)

Liquidity risk exposure
The remaining contractual matunties of the financial habilities as at 30 Novernber, based on the earliest date on which payment can be
required were as follows

Not more
3 months than More than
or less one year one year Total
2012 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Gurrent liabilizies
Bank overdraft 3,233 - - 3,233
Amounts due ta brokers and accruals 636 169 126 951
3,889 169 126 4 184
Not mere
3 months than More than
or less one year one year Total
2011 £'000 £000 £000 £ 000
Current liabilities
Bank overdraft 2,116 - - 2,116
Amounts due to brokers and accruals 404 129 24 557
2,520 129 24 2,673

(w1) Credit nsk

The failure of the counterparty to a transaction to discharge its obligations under that transaction could result m the Company suffenng
atoss

Management of the nsk
The nisk is managed as follows

- Invesiment transactions are carned out with a large number of brokers, whose credit standard 1s revewed pertodically by the
fnvestment Manager, and mits are set an the amount that may be due from any one broker,

- the Company’s listed investments are held on its behalf by The Bank of New York Mellon as the Company's custedian Bankruptcy or

insolvency of the custodian may cause the Company’s nights with respect to secunities held by the custodian to be delayed The Board
monitors the Company’s risk by reviewing the custedian’s internal control reports,
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- the credit worthiness of counterparties to stock lending I1s assessed by the Investment Manager prior to trading and on a regular
ongoing basis Afl transactions are secured with collateral to 105% of the value of the stock on loan,

- the creditworthiness of financial inshitutions with whom cash ts held 1s assessed regularly by the Investment Manager, and
- allthe transactions in quoted secunities are seitled on a payment against delivery basis using approved brokers The risk of default s
considered mimimal, as delivery of securities sold 1s only made once the broker has received payment Payment 1s made on purchase

once the securities have been recewed by the broker The trade will fail if either party fails to meet its cbligation

In summary, the exposure o credit risk at 30 November was as follows

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Fixed interest security 695 -
Amounts due from brokers 266 -
Accrued income 272 187
Taxation recoverable 10 21
Cash at bank 75 -
1,418 278

None of the Company’s financial habilities are past due or mpaired

{va1) Fair values of financial assets and financial habilittes

Financial assets and financial habiities are either carried in the Statement of Financial Position at their fair value (investments and
denvatives) or the balance sheet amount which 15 a reasonable approximation of fair value {due from brokers, dwvidends and interest
recewvable, due to brokers, accruals, cash at bank, bank overdrafts and amounts due under the bank overdraft faciiity)

(vin) Capital management polictes and procedures
The Company's capital management gbjectives are

- toensure it wil be able to continue as & going concern, and

- toachieve an annual dividend target and over the long term capttal growth investing primarily in secunties of companies operating in the
mining and energy sector

This 15 to be achweved through an appropnate balance of equity capital and geanng The Company operates a flexible geanng policy which
depends on prevailing conditions

The Company’s total capital as 30 November 2012 was £114,896,000 (2011 £120,758,000) compnising £3,233,000 (2011 £2,116,000) of
bank overdraft and £111,663,600 (2011 £118,642,000) of equity shares, capital and reserves

20 Contingent liabilities
Contingent liabilities amounted to £780,000 in respect of underwriting contracts at 30 November 2012 (2011 nil)
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Analysis of Ordinary Shareholders

30 November 2012

By type of holder

Number of % of total % of total Number of % of total % of total
shares 2012 2011 hoiders 2012 2011
Drrect private Investars 1,944,084 20 23 06 178 17 4
Banks and nominee companies 89,798,845 953 954 1,373 97 803
Qthers 2,515,071 27 21 44 25 23
94,258,000 1000 100 O 1,723 1000 1000
By size of holding
Number of % of total % of totat Number of % of total % of total
shares 2012 2011 holders 20i2 201
1-10,000 5,692,329 60 &5 1,248 736 743
10,601 - 100,000 2,451,714 100 102 156 206 200
100,001 - £,000,000 26,832,883 285 281 77 45 44
1,000,001 - 5,000,000 40827775 430 552 20 12 13
Gver 5,000,001 11 753,299 125 - 2 01 -
94,258,000 1000 1000 1,723 1000 1000
Historical Analysis
Net assets Net asset Revenue
attributable value per Crdinary returnper Dmidend *~Total
Number of to ordinary ordinary share price ordimary | per ordinary expense/
sharesin| sharehotders share | {rmd-market) share share ongoing
15sue £'000 p o} P p| ¢harges ratc
At launch, 13 December 2085 75,000,000 73,500 98 00 100 00 - - -
Perod ended 30 November 2006 75,600,000 79,784 105 53 101 25 528 4 50 i5
Year ended 30 Novernber 2007 75,600,000 110,018 158 05 149 75 631 525 i3
Year ended 30 November 2008 75,600 000 57,625 B0 25 72 50 696 540 I
‘fear ended 30 Novemnber 2009 75,600,000 20,260 120 63 11975 574 550 15
Year ended 30 Novemnber 2010 90,508,000 125848 139 05 143 G0 585 560" 14
Year ended 30 November 2011 90,508,000 118 642 13108 12775 588 575 13
Year ended 30 November 2012| 94,258,000 111,663 118 47 12275 610 590 13

.

tn addition two specral cimdends were 21so paid duning the year, totalling 1 52 pence per share
** Based cn average net assets for the year Effective 2011 the angaing charges ratig s calculated in accordance with the AIC recommended methodology for the calculation of
ongoing charges Lintil 2010 the 1otal expense ratio was calculated 1n accordance with the AIC best practice gudance
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Additional Shareholder Information

Financial calendar
The timing of the announcement and publication of the Company’s
results may normally be expected in the months shown below

January/February
Annual results for the year ended 30 November announced and the
annual report and financial statements published

March
Annual General Meeting

July
Half yearly figures to 31 May announced and half yearly financial
report published

Quarterly Dividends
Dwmidends are paid quarterly as follows

Pericd ending Ex-date Payment date
28 February March Apnl
31 May June July
31 August September October
30 Novermnber December January

Payment of dividends

Cash dvidends will be sent by cheque to the first-named
shareholder at their registered address Dividends may also

be paid direct into a sharehoider’s bank account via BACSTEL-IP
(Bankers™ Automated Clearing Service - Telecom internet Protocol)
This may be arranged by contacting the Company's registrar,
Computershare Investor Services PLC, through their secure website
www Investorcentre co uk, on 0870 707 1476 or by completing
the Mandate Instructions section an the reverse of your dividend
counterfoil and sending this to the Company’s registrar,
Computershare Tax vouchers will be sent to shareholders at thetr
registered address, unless other instructions have been given, to
arrive on the payment date

Dividend reinvestment scheme {“DRIP"}

Shareholders may request that their dividends be used to

purchase further shares in the Company Dwvidend remvestment
forms may be ebtained from Computershare Investor Services PLC
through their secure website www investorcentre co uk, or on

0870 707 1476 Shareholders who have already opted to have therr
dividends reinvested do not need to reapply

Share price

The Company’s mid-market ordinary share price I1s quoted

daily in The Financial Times and The Times under “Investment
Companies” and in The Daily Telegraph under “tnvestment Trusts”
The share price 1s also avaldable on the BlackRock website at
www blackrock co uk /brei
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ISIN/SEDOL numbers
The ISIN/SEDOL nusmbers and mnemonic codes for the Company’s
shares are

Qrdinary Shares
ISIN GBOOBONSMF98
SEDOL BONBMF¢
Reuters Code BRCIL
Bloomberg Code BRCI LN

Share dealing

Investars wishing to purchase more shares in the Company or sell
all or part of therr existing holding may do so through a stockbroker
Most hanks also offer this service

For existing shareholders the Company’s registrar, Computershare
Investor Services PLC, has both internet and telephone share
dealing services To access the internet share dealing service, log
on to www computershare com/dealing/uk The telephone share
dealing service 1s avallable on 0870 703 0084 To use these
services, you will need yaur shareholder reference number, which 1s
detailed on your certificate

Internet dealing - The fee for this service 1s 1% of the value of each
sale or purchase of shares (subject to a minimum of £30) Stamp
duty of O 5% s payable on purchases

Telephone dealing - The fee for this service will be 1% of the value of
the transaction {plus £35} Stamp duty of ¢ 5% 1s payable on
purchases

CREST
The Company's shares may be held in CREST, an electronic system
for uncertificated securities trading

Private investors can continue to retain their share certificates and
remain outside the CREST system Private investors are able to buy
and sell thewr holdings in the same way as they did prior to the
introduction of CREST, although there may be differences in dealing
charges

Electronic communications

We encaourage you to ptay your part In reducing our impact on the
environment and elect to be notified by email when your
shareholder communications become available online This means
you will receve timely, cost-effective and greener online annual
reports, half yearly financial reports and other relevant
documentation




Sharehelders who opt for this service will recewve an

email from Computershare with a link to the relevant section

aof the BlackRock website where the documents can be viewed
and downloaded Please submit your email address by visiting
www Investorcentre co uk /ecomms You will require your
shareholder reference number which you will find on your share
certificate or tax voucher

You will continue to recewe a printed copy of these reports if you
have elected to do so Alternatively, If you have not submitted your
emall address nor have elected to recewve printed reports, we will
write and let you know where you can view these reports oniine

Electronic proxy voting

Shareholders are able to submit their proxy votes electronically via
Computershare’s internet site at www eproxyappointment com
using their shareholder reference number, control number and a
unigue dentfication PIN and SRN which will be provided with voting
nstructions and the Notice of Annual General Meeting CREST
members who wish to appoint one or more proxies or give an
instruction through the CREST electronic proxy appointment
service may do so by using the procedures described in the CREST
manual More details are set out n the notes on the form of proxy
and the Notice of Annual General Meeting

Nominee code
Where shares are heid in a nominee company name, the Company
undertakes

» to provide the nominee company with multiple copies of
shareholder communications, so long as an indication of
quantities has been provided n advance,

» to allow investors holding shares through a nominee company
to attend general meetings, provided the correct authonty from
the nominge company 15 avallable, and

» that investars in the BlackRock Investment Trusts Savings Plan
and |1SA are automatically sent shareholder communications,
mncluding details of general meetings, together with a form of
direction to facilitate voting and to seek authority to attend, and

Nominge comparies are encouraged to provide the necessary

authonity to underlying shareholders to attend the Company’s
general meetings
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Publication of NAV /portfolio analysis

The NAV per share of the Company is calculated daily, with details
of the Company's investments and performance being published
monthly

The daily NAV and monthly information are released through the
London Stock Exchange’s Regulatery News Service and are
avallable on the BlackRock website at www blackrock co uk /1ts and
through the Reuters News Service under the code “BLRKINDEX”,
on page 8800 on Topic 3 (ICV terminals} and under “BLRK™ on
Bloomberg {monthly information only)

Internet

Other details about the Company are atse available on the
BlackRock website at www blackrock co uk /brei The financial
staternents and other hiterature are published on the website
Visitors to the website need to be aware that legislatton in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of the
financial statements may differ from legislation in their jurisdiction

Sharehotders can also manage therr shareholding ontine

by using Investor Centre, Computershare’s secure website,

at www nvestorcentre co uk

To access Computershare’s website you will need your shareholder
reference number {SRN) which can be found on paper or electronic
communications you have previcusly received from Computershare

Listed below are the most frequently used features of the website

» Holding enquiry - view balances, values, history, payments and
reinvestments

» Payments enquiry - view your dividends and other payment
types

» Address change - change your registered address

» Bank detaills update - choose to recewve your dvidend payment
directly into your bank account instead of by cheque

» e-Comms sign-up - choose to receve email notification when
your shareholder communications become avatlable instead of

paper communications

» Outstanding payments - reissue payments using the online
replacement service

» Downlgadabie forms - inciucing dividend mandates, stock
transfer, dividend reinvestment and change of address forms
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Additional Shareholder Information continued

Savings Plan

The Company participates in the BlackRock Investment Trusts
Savings Plan, which facilitates both regular monthly investments
and accastonal lump sum investments in the Company’s erdinary
shares

Shareholders who waould like information on the Savings Plan
should ¢all BlackRock free on 0800 44 55 22

Stocks and Individual Savings Accounts (“1SA”)

1SAs are a tax-efficient method of investment and the
Company’s shares are eligible investments within the BlackRock
Investment Trust stocks and shares Individual Savings Account
Investors currently have an annual ISA allowance of £11,280
With effect from 6 April 2013 this allowance will be increased
to £11,520 Details are available from BlackRock by calling

free on 0800 44 55 22

Shareholder enquiries

The Company’s registrar 1s Computershare Investor Services PLC
Certain detalls relating to your holding can be checked through the
Computershare Investor Centre website As a security check,
specific information needs to be input accurately to gain access to
an individual’s account This includes the shareholder reference
numbey, available from either the share certificate or tax voucher or
other electronic communications previcusly recewved from
Computershare The address of the Computershare website 1s www
investorcentre co uk Alternatively please contact the registrar on
0870707 1476

Changes of name or address must be notified to the registrar, in
wrifing at

Computershare Investor Services PLC,
The Pavilions,

Bridgwater Road,

Bristol BS99 622,
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General enquiries
Enquines about the Company should be directed to

The Secretary

BlackRock Commodities Income Investment Trust pic
12 Throgmorton Avenue

London EC2N 2DL

Telephone 0800 44 55 22

Enquines about the Savings Plan and |SA should De directed to
Freepost RITZ-KHUH-KZS8

BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited
PC Box 9036

Chefmsfard CM99 2XD

Telephone 0800 44 55 22




Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice s hereby given that the seventh Annual General Meeting of
BlackRock Commadities Income Investment Trust ple will be hefd at
the offices of BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited,

12 Throgmorton Avenue, London ECZN 20U on Friday, 8 March
2013 at 10 302 m to transact the following business

Ordinary business

1 To receive the report of the Directors and the financial
statements for the year ended 30 November 2012, together
with the report of the Auditor thereon

2 To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year
ended 30 November 2012

3 Tore-elect Mr) G Ruck Keene as a Director
4 Tore-elect Mr H van der Klugt as a Director
5 Tore-appoint Ernst & Young LLP as Auditor to the Company

6 To authonse the Directors to determine the Auditor's
remuneration

Special business
To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following resotution as an
ardinary resolution

7 That, in substitution for all existing authorities, the Directors of
the Company be and they are hereby generally and
unconditionally authorised pursuant to section 551 of the
Companies Act 2006 (the “Act"), to exercise all the powers of
the Company to allot shares in the Company and to grant nights
to subscnibe for or to convert any security into shares m the
Company (“Secunties"), up to an aggregate nominal amount of
£94,258 {peing 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the
1ssued ordinary share capital of the Company at the date of this
notice) provided this authority shall expire at the conciusion of
the next Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in
2014 but so that the Company may, before such expiry, make
any offer or agreement which would or might require relevant
securities to be allotted pursuant to any such offer or
agreement as if the authority hereby conferred had not expired

To consider and, If thought fit, pass the following resoluttons as
specal resoiutions

8 That, in substitution for all existing authorities and subject to
the passing of resolution 7 above, the Directors of the Company
be and are hereby empowered pursuant to sections 570 and
573 of the Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”) to allot equity
securities (as defined in section 560 of the Act), including the
grant of rights to subscribe for or to convert securnties into
ardinary shares of the Company, and to sell equity secunties
held by the Company as treasury shares [as defined in section
724 of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authority granted by
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resolution 7 above, as If section 561(1) of the Act did not apply
to any such allotment and sales of equity secunties, provided
that this authorty

(a) shall expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting to be held in 2014, except that the Company may
before such expiry make offers or agreements which would
or might require equity securities to be allotted or sold after
such expiry and notwithstanding such expiry the Directors
may allot or sedl equity securities in pursuance of such
offers or agreements, and

(b) shall be imited to allotment of equity securities and /or sate
of equsty securities held in treasury for cash up to an
aggregate nominal amount of £94,258, (representing 10%
of the aggregate nominat amount of the tssued share capital
of the Company at the date of this notice), and

(c

In the case of the allotment or sale of ordmary shares, at a
price of not less than the net asset value per share as close
as practicable to the allotment or sale

That, 1n substitution for the Company’s existing authority to
make market purchases of ordinary shares of 1p in the
Company (*Shares”), the Company be and it 1s hereby
authonsed in accordance with section 701 of the Companies
Act 2006 (the "Act”} to make market purchases of Shares
{within the meaning of section 693 of the Act) provided that

{a) the maximum number of Shares hereby authcrised to be
purchased I1s 14,129,274 (being the equivalent of 14 99% of
the Company’s issued share capital at the date of this
notice),

(b} the mimmum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be
paid for a Share shall be ip,

(¢

the maximum price (exclusive of expenses) which may be
paid for a Share shall be the higher of (3} 5% above the
average of the market values of the Shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of purchase,
as denved from the Daily Official List of the London Stock
Exchange and {if) the higher of the price quoted for (a} the
tast independent trade of and (b) the highest current
independent bid for, any number of Shares on the trading
venue where the purchase 15 carned out, and

,-._
[=%
_—

unfess renewed, the authonity hereby conferred shali expire
at the conclusicn of the AGM of the Company in 2014 save
that the Company may, prior to such expiry, enter into a
contract to purchase Shares which wilt or may be
completed or executed wholly or partly after such expiry
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Notice of Annual General Meeting contmued
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All Shares purchased pursuant to the above authority shall
be either

(a) cancelled immedhately on completion of the purchase, or

(b) held, sold, transferred or otherwise deait with as treasury
shares in accordance with the provisions of the Act

That, in addition to the authonty given to the Company to
purchase Its own Shares pursuant to the resolution numbered 9
above, and in accordance with the standard terms and
cenditions of the regular tender offers, {the “Terms and
Conditions™)}, the Company be and 1s hereby authorsed in
accordance with section 701 of the Companies Act 2006

{the “Act”) to make market purchases (within the meaning of
section 693 of the Act) of its Shares of 1p each (“Shares”),
provided that

{a) the maximum number of Shares hereby authorised to be
purchased shall not exceed 20% of the Shares in 1ssue as at
31 August 2013 (excluding any Shares held in Treasury),

{b) the pnce which may be paid for a Share shall be the Tender
Price (as defined in the Terms and Condtions), and

(¢} the authority hereby conferred shall expire on 31 Cctober
2013 {unless such authority I1s renewed prior to such time)
save that the Company may, prior to such expiry, €nter Into a
contract to purchase Shares which will or may be
completed or executed wholly or partly after such expiry

Save as expressly provided in this resolution, words defined
n the Terms and Conditions shall bear the same meanings In
this resolution

That, in addition tc the authority given to the Company to
purchase its own Shares pursuant to the resolutions numbered
9 and 10 above and n accordance with the standard terms and
conditions of the regular tender offers, {the “Terms and
Conditions”), the Company be and I1s hereby authorised in
accordance with section 701 of the Comparies Act 2006 (the
“Act™) to make market purchases {within the meaning of section
693 of the Act) of its ordinary shares of 1p each (“Shares”),
provided that

{a) the maximum number of Shares hereby authorised to be
purchased shall not exceed 20% of the Shares in 1ssue as at

28 February 2014 (excluding any Shares held in Treasury},

(b) the price which may be paid for a Share shall be the Tender
Price {as defined in the Terms and Conditions), and

BlackRock Commodities Income Investment Trust ple

{c) the authority hereby conferred shall expire on 30 Apnl 2014
{unless such autherity s renewed prior to such time) save
that the Company may, prior to such expiry, enter into a
contract to purchase Shares which will or may be
completed or executed wholly or partly after such expiry

Save as expressly provided inthis resolution, words defined
In the Terms and Conditicns shall bear the same meanings in
this resoluticn

12 That the Articles of Association of the Company be amended by
deleting the existing Articles 126 5 and 126 6 1n their entirety
and inserting the following new Article 126 5 m their place

“126 5 The Board shall establish a reserve to be called the
“Capital Reserve” All surpluses ansing from the realisation or
revaluation of investments and all other monies realised on or
derived from the reahsation, payment off of or other dealing
with any capital asset in excess of the book value therecf and
ali other menies which are considered by the Board to be in the
nature of accretion to capital reserves shall be credited to the
Capital Reserve Subject to the Act, the Board may determine
whether any amount received by the Company 1s to be deait
with 1n the iIncome account or Capital Reserve or partly one way
and partly the other Any loss realised on the realisation or
payment off of or other dealing with any investments or other
capital assets and, subject to the Act, any expenses, loss or
habihity {or provision therefor) which the Board considers to
relate to a capital reserve item or which the Board otherwise
considers appropnate to be debited to the Capital Reserve shall
be carried to the debit of the Capital Reserve All sums carned
and standing to the credit of the Capital Reserve may be
applied for any of the purposes to which sums standing ta any
revenue reserve are applicable ”

By Order of the Board

BlackRock Investment Management (UK) Limited
Secratary

18 january 2013

Registered Office

12 Throgmarton Avenue
London

eCZN 2DL




MNotes

1

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by the above Notice 15 also entitled to appomt one or more proxies to exercise all or any of
the rights of the member to attend, speak and vote In his place A proxy need not be a member of the Company |f a member appoints more than one proxy
to attend the meeting, each proxy must be appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held by the member

To appaint a proxy you may use the form of proxy enclosed with this annual report To be valid, the form of proxy; together with the power of attorney or other
authority (if any} under which 1t 1s signed or notanally certified or office copy of the same, must be completed and returned to the office of the Company’s
registrar 10 accordance with the instructions therecn as soon as possible and n any event by not later than 1030 am on 6 March 2013 Amended
instructions must also be receved by the Company’s registrar by the deadline for receipt of forms of proxy Alternatively you can vote or appoint a proxy
electronmcally by visiing www eproxyappointment com You will be asked to enter the Control Number, the Shareholder Reference Number and PIN which
are printed on the form of praxy The latest time for the subrussion of proxy votes electronically 1s 10 30 a m on 6 March 2013

Completion and return of the form of proxy will not prevent a member from attending the meeting and voting (n person

Any persan receving a copy of this Notice as a person nominated by a member to enjoy information nghts under section 146 of the Companies Act 2006
{a "Nominated Person”) should note that the provisions in Notes 1 to 2 above concerning the appointment of a proxy or proxies to attend the meeting in
place of a member, do not apply to a Nominated Person as cnly crdinary shareholders have the nght to appoint a proxy However, a Nomenated Person may
have a nght under an agreement between the Nominated Perscn and the member by whom he or she was nominated to be appointed, or to have scmeone
else appointed, as proxy for the meeting If a Nominated Person has no such proxy appontment right or does not wish to exercise it, he/she may have a
right under such agreement to give instructions to the member as to the exercise of voting nghts at the meeting

Nominated persons sheuld also remember that their main point of contact 1n terms of thew investrent in the Company remains the member who nominated
the Norminated Persen te enjoy the information nghts {or perhaps the custodian or broker who administers the investment on their behalf} Nominated
Persons should continue to contact that member, custodian or broker {and not the Company) regarding any changes or queries relating to the Nominated
Persons personal details and interest in the Company (including any admunistrative matter] The only exception to this 1s where the Company expressly
requests a respense from the Nominated Person

Pursuant to regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001, only ordinary sharehclders registered in the register of members of the
Company by not later than 6 00 p m two days pror to the time fixed for the meeting shall be entitled to attend and vote at the meeling in respect of the
number of the ordinary shares registered in thair name at such time If the meeting 1s adjeurned the time by which aperson must be entered on the register
of members of the Company in order to have the right to atiend and vote at the adjourned meeting 1s 6 00 p m two days prior to the time of adjeurnment
Changes to the register of members after the relevant times shall be disregarded in determining the nghts of any person to attend and vote at the meeting
In the case of joint holders the vote of the senior holder wha tenders a vote, whather In person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of
the other joint holders and, for this purpese, senionty will be determined by the order in which the names stand in the register of members of the Company
in respect of the relevant joint holding

Holders of ordinary shares through the Savings Schemes are entitled to attend and vote at the meeting If the voting instruction form, which is enclosed with
this document s correctly completed and returned in accordance with the mstruchions printed thereon

Shareholders whe hold their ordimary shares electronically may submit therr votes through CREST, by submitting the appropriate and authenticated CREST
message so as to be receved by the Company s registrar not later than 48 hours before the start of the meeting instructions on how 1o vote through CREST
can be found by accessing the following website www euroglearcom/CREST Sharehclders are advised that CREST and the internet are the only methods
by which completed proxies can be submitted electronically

If you are a CREST system user (including a CREST personal member) you can 2ppoint one or mora proxies or give an instruction to a proxy by having an
appropriate CREST message transmitted To appeint one or more prostes of to give an INstruction to a proxy (whether previously appointed or othenmse)
via the GREST system, CREST messages must be received by Computershare (ID number 3RA50) nct later than 48 hours before the time appomted for
holding the meeting Fer this purpese, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined by the imestamp generated by the CREST system) from
which Computershare 1s able to retrieve the message CREST personal members or other CREST sponsored members shoulg contact their CREST sponsor
for assistance with appainting proxies via CREST For further information on CREST procedures, imitations and system timings please refer to the CREST
manual The Company may treat as invalid a proxy appeointment sent by CREST in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5){a) of the Uncertificated
Secunties Regulations 20073

If the Chairman, as a result of any proxy appointments 1s given discretion as to haw the votes subject of those proxies are cast and the voting rights
in respect of those discretionary proxies, when added to the interest in the Company’s secunities already held by the Chairman result in the Chairman
holding such number of voting nghts that he has a notifiable cbligation under the Disclosure and Transparency Rules, the Chairman will make the necessary
notficat:ons to the Company and the Financial Services Authority As a result, any member holding 3% or more of the vouing nights in the Company, who
grants the Chairman a discreticnary proxy in respect of some or all of those voting nghts and so would otherwise have a notficanon obligation under tha
Disclosure and Transparency Rules, need not make a separate notification to the Company and the Financiai Services Authonty

Any guestions refevant to the business of the meeting may be asked at the meeting by anyone permitted to speak at the mesting A shareholder may
alternatively submit a question In advance by a letter addressed to the Company Secretary at the Companys registered office Under Saction 3194 of
the Companigs Act 2006, the Company must answer any question 2 shareholder asks relating to the business being dealt with at the meeting, unless
{1} answering the question would interfere unduly with the preparation for the meeting or involve the disclosure of confidential information, {i) the answer
had already been given on a website In the form of an answer to a question, or () 1t 13 undesirable in the Interests of the Company ¢r the good order of the
meeting that the question be answered

Any corporation which 15 a member can appoint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise on 1ts behalf all of its powers as a member
provided that if /1s appointing more than cne corporate representative, 1t does not do so in relation to the same shares It 1s therefore no longer necessary
1o nominate a designated corporate representative
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Under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006, members meeting the threshold reguirements set out In that section have the right to require the Company
to publish on a website a statement setting out any matter relating to
(1} the audit of the Company’s accounts (iIn¢luding the auditor s report and the conduct of the audsit} that are laid before the meeting, or
(n) any circumstance cennected with an Auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since the previous meeting at which annual accounts and reports
were laid \n accordance with section 437 of the Companies Act 2006
The Company may not require the members requesting such website publication to pay Its expenses In comply:ng with sections 527 or 528 of the Companies
Act 2006 Where the Company 1s required to place a statement on a website under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006, it must forward the statement
to the Company’s Auditor not later than the time when it makes the statement available on the webstie The businesswhich may be dealt with at the meeting
ncludes any statement that the Company has baen required under section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 to pubish on a website
Under sechions 338 and 338A of the Companies Act 2006, members meeting the threshold requirements in those sections have the nght to require the
Company
(1) to gwe, to members of the Company entitled to receive notice of the meeting, natice of a resolution which may properly be moved and (s intended to
be moved at the meeting, and/or
(n) toinclude in the business to be dealt with at the meeting any matter (other than a proposed resolution) which may be properly in¢luded in the business
A resolution may properly be moved cor a matter may groperly be included in the bus:ness unless
{a) (i the case of a resclution only) it would, If passed, be ineffective (whether by reasen of inconsistency with any enactment or the Company’s
constitution or otherwise)
(b) 1t 1s defamatory of any persen or
[¢) s frivolous or vexatsous Such a request may be in hard copy form or in electronic form, and must 1dentify the resolution of which notice 1s to be
given or the matter to be included 1n the business, must be authorised by the person or persens making it, must be received by the Company not
later than 25 January 2013, being the date six clear weeks before the meeting, and (in the case of a matter tc be included in the business only) must
be accompanied by a statement setting out the grounds for the request
As at the date of this report, the Company's 1ssue share capital consisted of 94,258,000 ordinary shares Each ordinary share carries the right to cne vote
and therefore the total voting nights (in the Company as at the date of this report are 94,258,000
Further information regarding the meeting which the Company 13 required by section 311A of the Companies Act 2006 to publish on a website in advance
aof the meeting {Including this Notice), can be accessed at www blackrock couk /brei
No service contracts exist between the Company and any of the Directors, who hold office In accardance with letters of appointment and the Articles
of Association
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Glossary

Net asset value per share (“NAV")

This 15 the value of the Company's assets attributable to one
ordinary share It s calculated by dwviding “total equity” by the total
number of ordinary shares in 1ssue [excluding treasury shares) For
exampie, as at 30 November 2012, totat equity was £111,662,000
and there were 94,258,000 ordinary shares In 1ssue, the NAV was
therefore 118 46 pence per ordinary share

Total equity 15 caleulated by deducting from the Company’s total
assets, tts current and long term liabilities and provision for
iiabilities and charges

Discount

Investment trust shares frequently trade at a discount to NAV This
occurs when the share price 1s less than the NAY In this
cweumstance, the price that an investor pays or recewves for a share
would be less than the value attributable to it by reference to the
underlying assets The discount 1s the diference between the share
price and the NAV, expressed as a percentage of the NAV For
example, if the share price was 90p and the NAV 100p, the
discount would be 10%

Premium

A premium oceurs when the share price 1s more than the NAV and
investors would therefore be paying more than the value
attributable to the shares by reference to the underlying assets For
exampte, If the share price was 100p and the NAV 90p, the
premium would be 11 1%

Discounts and prernia are mainly the canseguence of supply and
demand for the shares on the stock market




